
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

On March 20, 2020, City Manager Gregory Rose declared a State of Emergency for the City of University City due to 
the COVID-19 Pandemic.  Due to the ongoing efforts to limit the spread of the COVID-19 virus, the January 10, 2022 
meeting be conducted via videoconference 
 
 
Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below): 
 
Webinar via the link below: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82244676726?pwd=RDJ1L05CSVB5YnNpcEtMNUcvWHZpZz09 
Passcode: 614351 

 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
Audio Only Call   

Or One tap mobile :  
    US: +13017158592,,82244676726#  or +13126266799,,82244676726#  
Or Telephone: 
     US: +1 301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 929 205 6099  or +1 253 215 8782  or 877 
853 5247 (Toll Free) or 888 788 0099 (Toll Free) 
 
Webinar ID: 822 4467 6726 
    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcOtqmPN4L 

 

Citizen Participation and Public Hearing Comments: 
Those who wish to provide a comment during the "Citizen Participation" portion as indicated on the City 
Council agenda; may provide written comments to the City Clerk ahead of the meeting. 
 
ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments 
may be sent via email to: councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – 
Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments 
will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also 
note if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the 
provided comment will not be recorded in the official record.  

The City apologizes for any inconvenience the meeting format change may pose to individuals, but it is 
extremely important that extra measures be taken to protect employees, residents, and elected officials 
during these challenging times. 
 
 
  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

Monday, January 10, 2022 
6:30 p.m. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82244676726?pwd=RDJ1L05CSVB5YnNpcEtMNUcvWHZpZz09
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcOtqmPN4L
mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

D. PROCLAMATION 
None 
 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. December 13, 2021 – Study Session Draft Minutes – Public Safety Notification 
2. December 13, 2021 – Regular Draft Minutes 
3. December 20, 2021 – Special Session Draft Minutes 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Dennis Fuller is nominated for re-appointment to the Traffic Commission by Councilmember Tim 
Cusick 

2. Jerrold Tiers is nominated for re-appointment to the Traffic Commission by Councilmember Tim 
Cusick 

3. Craig Hughes  is nominated for re-appointment to the Traffic Commission by Councilmember Tim 
Cusick 
 

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. A’isha Hedges was sworn in to the Arts and Letters Commission on December 22, 2021 via Zoom 
2. Marcie Dear was sworn in to the Arts and Letters Commission on December 28, 2021 in the Clerk’s 

office. 
3. Sophia Allen was sworn in to the Arts and Letters Commission on December 30, 2021 in the Clerk’s 

office. 
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings: 
ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email 
to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will 
be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the 
public online following the meeting.  
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on 
an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the 
official record. 

 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Liquor License – Greenwood Restaurant – 1000 Sutter Ave. 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. 2022 Legislative Platform 
2. Truck Bed Replacements (3) Contract – Public Works 
3. Kempland Bridge Surface Transportation Program (STP) Application 
4. Geotechnical Services Contract (Annex and Trinity Building Project) 
5. HVAC Unit Replacement – SmartHouse Heating and Cooling (Community Ctr.) 
6. Relocation Assistances Agreement – Aleksei Mironov (1190 Briscoe Place) 
7. Relocation Assistances Agreement – Mike Murray/Olga Kronova (1177 Briscoe Place) 

 
 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

Monday, January 10, 2022 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 3 of 3 
 

 
K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

1. Liquor License – Greenwood Restaurant LLC  (1000 Sutter Ave.) 
2. Site Plan Approval – All Nations Church (7860-7868 Olive Blvd.) 
3. Conditional Use Permit (CUP) – MNG 2005 Inc. (8322 Olive Blvd.) 
4. Creative Entourage Contract – Prop F Public Information and Communications Campaign 

 
L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
M. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolutions 
Bills 

 
N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATON (continue if needed) 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, 
causes of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged 
communications between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
R. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Posted 7th day of January 2022. 
 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 





Page 1 of 4 

STUDY SESSION 
OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, December 13, 2021 
6:00 p.m. 

On March 20, 2020, City Manager Gregory Rose declared a State of Emergency for the City of University City due to 
the COVID-19 Pandemic.  Due to the ongoing efforts to limit the spread of the COVID-19 virus, we encourage 
everyone in City facilities to wear a mask.  To provide for social distancing during Council meetings 
in-person public attendance will be limited to the first 25 people. 

AGENDA  
Requested by the City Manager 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Study Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, December 13, 2021, at City
Hall, on the fifth floor, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:
Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember Aleta Klein 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
Councilmember Tim Cusick 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., and Chief of 
Police, Larry Hampton.  

2. CHANGES TO REGULAR AGENDA
None.

3. PUBLIC SAFETY NOTIFICATION ON PROPERTY CRIMES AND GUNSHOT DETECTION V5
SYSTEMS

Mr. Rose stated Chief Hampton will be providing Council with presentations on the City's public safety 
notifications and practices and the Gunshot Detection V5 System.  Council is asked to provide staff with 
directions for any changes they would like to see in these current notifications and practices.   

Chief Hampton stated the following information references pertinent crimes within the community 
specifically related to property crimes.   

2020 Calls For Service 
U City responds to every emergency and non-emergency call, which is why it has the largest call 
volumes within the jurisdiction. 

Non-Emergency Emergency Total 
2019 59,684 21,997 81,681 

2020 62,894 20,155 83,049 

Total 122,578 42,152 164,730 

E - 1 - 1



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Other L.E. Agencies in St. Louis County 
• Florissant P.D. for 2020 totaled 68,741 calls for service  

  (Florissant pop. 55, xxx people)  
• Maryland Heights P.D. for 2020 totaled 61,112 calls for service  

  (M.H. pop. 30, xxx people)  
• Clayton P.D. for 2020 totaled 16,530 calls for service 

   (Clayton pop. 20, xxx people)  
 
Strategic Methods Addressing Crime 

• UCPD addresses CRIME TRENDS on a daily, weekly, and routine basis (not seasonal).  UCPD 
daily Patrol Plans are Strategic ACTION PLANS & they specify how to combat trending issues or 
crime problems (i.e., Catalytic Converters, park vagrants, shots fired in specific areas and times) 
per shift and watch.   

• Roll Calls are daily training sessions & UCPD gets the most of those daily meetings via videos, Q 
& A sessions, and outside trainers making presentations.  

• COVID brought about new innovative criminal tactics and trends.  Law enforcement agencies 
everywhere changed strategic deployment methods and criminal intelligence sharing to adapt to 
persevere with our community mission of public safety.  

 
Case Investigations 
While the County has an entire unit assigned to investigations, the Department has one PIO, Captain 
Frederick Lemons, and one Crime Analyst, Ms. Danella Lang. 
 
6 Factors That Slow Down Law Enforcement Investigation 

• Case Loads; (volume of calls for incidents)  
• Case Screening & Intake; (policy on initiating investigations) 
• Cross-Unit Collaboration; (cooperation inner agency and outside agencies)  
• Community Involvement; (centralizing resource-effective in your community) 
• Checklist of Investigation; Process (the correct investigative process being used) 
• Case Review; (case review is an administrative task for reviewing cases) 

 
Staged Crime Scenes 

• Perpetrator makes the scene look like something it's not 
 Lab results do not match up with the testimony of witnesses 

 
Examples: 
 Arson - staging a crime to cover up another crime 
 Suicide/murder 
 Burglary - staged to collect insurance proceeds 

 
False Police Reports 
False Reports are a major factor that impedes notifications and investigations.  

• If you’re a witness or victim of a crime, one of the first steps is filing a police report, which helps to 
prompt an investigation.  While it is imperative to be completely honest and detailed when making 
a statement to the authorities, sometimes false statements are given.  So, why would 
someone file a false police report?  There are a number of reasons: 

• Sometimes it’s done to shift the focus of an investigation away from the perpetrator.  
• Other times it's to make an innocent party appear guilty. 

 
Reasons Why People Risk Committing This Crime 

• More false reports of property crimes are filed than crimes to a person. A property crime is 
one involving the loss of money or property; crimes to a person are one that usually involves an 
injury to that person, such as battery or rape. 

 

E - 1 - 2

https://thelawdictionary.org/article/creating-a-compelling-victim-impact-statement/


 

Page 3 of 4 
 

People file false property crime reports to: 
• Create a tax deduction.  Property losses above a certain threshold are deductible on federal and 

some state income taxes.  
• Defraud an insurance company that insures the property. 
• Explain the loss or theft of an item, when the theft was made by the person doing the reporting.  

For example, say your employer gives you a laptop computer to use for work.  You leave the 
laptop in a bar or hotel room, and when you come back it's gone.  You report it as stolen from 
your locked car to cover your negligence.  People will even break out a car window to make it look 
more convincing, as the cost of replacing the car window is still a lot less than what most laptop 
computers cost.  Or you decide the computer would make a nice addition to your personal 
inventory, so you report a theft and keep the computer for yourself. 

• Cover cash embezzlements; (the laptop theft described above is also a form of embezzlement).  
A retail cashier might take money from the register then file a report of a "till tap," where a 
customer reaches into the cash drawer, takes the money, and runs.  

 
Chief Hampton stated his department disseminates information regarding property crimes once the 
information has been verified.  However, information that poses an imminent threat to an individual or the 
community at large is disseminated immediately.   
 Subdivision Trustees receive Crime Analysis Reports on a weekly basis, and that same information 
is posted on the City's website. 
No information is disseminated to the press until it has been properly vetted. 
 
Councilmember Hales asked if the dissemination practices currently being followed were contained in a 
written policy?  Chief Hampton stated they are unwritten policies that are implemented according to State 
Statutes.  Councilmember Hales asked if Council or the public would be notified under this unwritten 
policy if there was a rash of low-level crimes, such as forced entries, in a specific area? 
 
Mr. Rose stated while notifications involving armed robberies, murders, et cetera, are automatic, 
notifications for low-level crimes are left to the discretion of the commander on duty based on their 
severity.  However, the purpose of this presentation is to discern whether changes are needed to the 
current practices being followed.   

 
Councilmember Hales stated he would certainly want to be notified in the instances he described and 
believes it would also be helpful to notify the public.   
 
Chief Hampton stated notifications regarding armed robberies and burglaries are disseminated weekly.   
 
Councilmember Clay asked what percentage of the calls fell under the category of staged or 
misrepresented crimes?  Chief Hampton stated the statistics are not available for U City, but on a 
national level the average is 30 percent. 
 Councilmember Clay stated the Police Department appears to be part of a larger issue related to 
the City's challenges associated with what should be communicated when it should be communicated, 
and where to communicate it.  So, it might be a good idea to have someone come in and at how the two 
can leverage their social media tools to make communications more robust.  He stated while he would 
agree that it is within Council's purview to determine what criteria or policies need to be implemented, he 
does not think it is something that can be accomplished here tonight.    
 
Councilmember Klein asked if the Department had a mechanism in place to report patterns or tends 
versus single events for lower grade offenses because she thinks that would be helpful for the public to 
know?  Chief Hampton stated the mechanism currently being utilized disseminates information about 
crimes on a weekly basis.  But residents are encouraged to call his department at any time if they would 
like to gain a better understanding of the statistics.    
 
 

E - 1 - 3



Page 4 of 4 

Councilmember Cusick stated if there were approximately 83,000 emergency and non-emergency calls 
in 2020; that means the Department received roughly 227 calls a day.  And if that is the case, how does 
the Department manage this significant amount of calls?   Chief Hampton stated in his opinion, staff has 
been able to manage them quite effectively; especially since all of his officers are now certified to handle 
lower-level calls related to EMS, Fire, and crisis intervention.   

Mayor Crow stated he is somewhat perplexed at the differences in the number of calls, especially when 
you compare them to the City of Florissant.  So, unless there is some other explanation for why U City's 
numbers are so much higher than Florissant's, whose population is approximately 20,000 greater than U 
City's, these numbers are really difficult for him to discern. 

Chief Hampton stated U City's numbers include self-initiated calls and calls from citizens where a police 
report might be generated.  They also reflect the fact that U City is centrally located around communities 
that may not have the needed resources, or they are so close to U City's borders that incidents bleed 
over into this jurisdiction.  He stated although he does not have a rational explanation for the differences, 
he does know that since 2007, U City has had more calls than Jennings, Florissant, Maryland Heights, 
and Chesterfield. 

Mayor Crow stated he believes that if you are going to compare your stats to other communities you also 
need to want to make sure you're comparing apples to apples. 

Mr. Rose stated staff can certainly work to delineate what is included in their stats, as well as reach out to 
Florissant to try and make sure everything matches up.  

Chief Hampton stated while the City's calls include Fire and EMS, he is not sure if the same is true for 
Florissant since his understanding is that they have a Fire District versus their own Fire and EMS 
Departments.  

Mr. Rose stated while that could certainly have an impact, there is still a need for the City to conduct its 
own due diligence to determine the facts.   

Mr. McMahon stated the Weekly Crime Report lists a specific crime, an arrest summary, the number of 
juveniles or adults arrested, when it occurred, and where it occurred.  So, if a citizen is looking for trends 
it might be better to look at the Crime Statistics because this report breaks the crimes out by territories.  
He stated citizens should expect to receive a heads up when crime trends are occurring in their 
community, so maybe there is a need to review how these reports are presented on the website so 
residents can get a better idea of what's going on. 

Chief Hampton stated they have been looking at different formats but since their webpage is attached to 
ucitymo.org, it's a pretty extensive process.  But he would agree that the crimes by region provide a 
better depiction of what's going on, on a specific zip code or street. 

Councilmember McMahon stated by its very nature, there will be a lag in the statistics. So, it might be 
necessary for Council to review this practice to see if a balance can be established to identify these 
trends and get that information out to residents in a prompt manner.  

Councilmember Clay questioned if police reports were generated each time an ambulance is deployed?  
Chief Hampton stated a report is only generated if that call results in a criminal offense being committed.  

4. ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Crow stated based on the time he would suggest revisiting this topic at the January meeting.  He
then thanked everyone for their participation and adjourned the Study Session at 6:31 p.m.

LaRette Reese
City Clerk

E - 1 - 4



 

Page 1 of 8 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
On March 20, 2020, City Manager Gregory Rose declared a State of Emergency for the City of 
University City due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  Due to the ongoing efforts to limit the spread of the 
COVID-19 virus, we encourage everyone in City facilities to wear a mask.  To provide for social 
distancing during Council meetings in-person public attendance will be limited to the first 25 
people. 
 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, December 13, 
2021, at City Hall, on the fifth floor, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. 

 

B. ROLL CALL 

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present: 
 
   Councilmember Stacy Clay 
   Councilmember Aleta Klein 
   Councilmember Steven McMahon 
   Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
   Councilmember Tim Cusick 
   Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 
 
Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., and 
Director of Parks, Recreation and Forestry, Darren Dunkle.  
 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Hearing no amendments, Councilmember Clay moved to approve the Agenda as presented.  It 
was seconded by Councilmember Cusick, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

D. PROCLAMATION 
None 

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. September 18, 2021, Special Session Draft Minutes was moved by Councilmember Klein, it 
was seconded by Councilmember Hales, and the motion carried unanimously. 

2. September 18, 2021, Special Study Draft Minutes was moved by Councilmember Cusick, it 
was seconded by Councilmember Hales, and the motion carried unanimously. 

3. November 22, 2021, Study Session Draft Minutes – Parks Policy; was moved by 
Councilmember McMahon, it was seconded by Councilmember Klein, and the motion 
carried unanimously, with the exception of Councilmember Clay. 

4. November 22, 2021, Regular Draft Minutes was moved by Councilmember McMahon, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Cusick, and the motion carried unanimously, with the 
exception of Councilmember Clay. 
 
Councilmember Clay stated due to his absence from the November 22, 2021 meetings he 
has abstained from participating in the vote for these minutes.  
 

 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

 6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 
Monday, December 13, 2021 

6:30 p.m. 

E - 2 - 1



 

Page 2 of 8 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. A’isha Hedges is nominated to the Arts and Letters Commission replacing Cindy Thierry’s 

unexpired term, as a fill-in until January 1, 2024, by Councilmember Aleta Klein, it was 
seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 

2. Sophia Allen is nominated to the Arts and Letters Commission replacing Garrie Burr’s 
expired term as a fill-in until January 1, 2024, by Councilmember Aleta Klein, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Cusick, and the motion carried unanimously. 

3. Marcie Dear is nominated to the Arts and Letters Commission replacing Kay Watts expired 
term as a fill-in until January 1, 2024, by Councilmember Tim Cusick, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Klein, and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Victoria Gonzalez is nominated for reappointment to the Plan Commission by 
Councilmember Hales, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

5. Margaret Holly is nominated for reappointment to the Plan Commission by Councilmember 
Hales, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Michael Honigfort was sworn into the Board of Adjustments on December 9, 2021, via 
Zoom. 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Tom Sullivan, 751 Syracuse Avenue, U City, MO 
Mr. Sullivan stated several weeks ago he contacted the City Manager to inform him about 
numerous streetlights throughout the City that were not operational.  And while some have been 
fixed, there are several areas still in need of attention: 

• Three lights on Ackert Park Walkway; 
• One light by the benches at Leland and The Loop North; 
• Two lights on the sidewalk that runs through The Loop parking lot; 
• Two lights on North Drive; 
• One bulb that needs to be replaced at Eastgate Park;  
• Six pedestrian lights on Olive, west of Ferguson; 
• Eight overhead streetlights on Olive between Pennsylvania and Midland;  
• Two streetscape lights on Olive, west of Midland, and 
• Twelve streetscape lights between Olive and Hanley.   

There is also a pile of branches in the alley behind 638 Kingsland, Metcalf Park on Leland, and a 
wire hanging down behind 758 Kingsland.   
 He stated U City Schools did poorly in the State's test scores that came out last week, 
ranking 24th out of 28 districts in English, language, and arts, and 23rd in mathematics.  If left 
unresolved, Mr. Sullivan surmised that these results, coupled with an unresponsive 
administration, inequality, higher taxes, and increasing crime, will only lead to a continual loss of 
population.    
 

 
Citizens may provide written comments ahead of the meeting, which must be received no later than 12:00 
p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be sent via email to: councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or 
mailed to City Hall, 6801 Delmar Blvd.; Attention City Clerk.  All comments will be provided to City Council 
prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public 
online following the meeting.  A name and address must be provided.  Please also note whether your 
comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not provided on your written 
comment it will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
Mayor Crow thanked everyone who submitted written comments and noted that all comments meeting the 
aforementioned guidelines were provided to Council prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 

E - 2 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

Page 3 of 8 
 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None 

 
J. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. CDBG Funds – Authorize Mayor’s Signature 
2. Relocation Assistance (G. Roberts) 
3. Golf Course Security Cameras  
4. Supplemental Agreement for Construction Services (sidewalks, curbs, ramps, and streets) 
5. Trane mechanical repair for Centennial Commons Roof Top 
6. Public Safety Replacement Vehicles 
7. Midwest Association of Farmers Markets Reimbursement Request of Funds 

 
Councilmember McMahon moved to approve Items 1 through 7 on the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Cusick, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Rose announced his intent is to request a Zoom meeting with the Mayor and Council on 
Monday, December 20th, to discuss two requests for funding from U City in Bloom and the 
Markets. 
 

K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
1. Evaluation of Pension Fund(Market Comparison) 

 
Mr. Rose stated in an effort to remain competitive, staff is recommending that Council consider 
conducting a professional evaluation to determine how the City's Union and Non-Uniform Pension 
Funds compare with others throughout the region. 
 
Mayor Crow questioned whether this was an evaluation of the plans themselves and not the fund 
balances?  Mr. Rose stated that was correct.     
 
Councilmember McMahon stated the Pension Board has expressed a desire to look at the 
management of these funds.  So, is it possible to dovetail some of their questions into the 
evaluation?  Mr. Rose stated although the original plan was to make sure the City is competitive, 
the evaluation could be expanded to include some of the issues raised by the Pension Board.  
Especially, if there is an unsatisfactory determination, which will require a deeper dive to establish 
the root of the problem, and the cost of making any necessary improvements.  
 
Mayor Crow stated another aspect that has not been reviewed for some time is whether the City 
should keep the same Pension Plan Managers or look at other options.  And this is something he 
believes should be monitored on a regular basis.  
 
Councilmember Clay questioned whether the fact that it takes a U City employee 10 years to 
become vested, be an example of what this evaluation will entail from a competitive perspective?  
Mr. Rose stated that is definitely an element that will be evaluated.   
 
Councilmember Hales posed the following questions to Mr. Rose: 
Q.  Does staff intend to issue an RFP to obtain the right professional consultant? 
A.  The answer to this question will depend on what I learn after conducting my initial research into 
this issue.  If there are several firms offering this type of service, an RFP could potentially be 
issued.  But if there are only a limited number of companies there may not be a need to issue one.  
Q.  Either way, will the results be brought back before Council for consideration? 
A.  The intent is to discuss staff's recommendation with the Pension Plan Boards and seek 
consideration and approval from Council. 
 
 
 

E - 2 - 3



 

Page 4 of 8 
 

Mayor Crow asked what type of action was being requested from Council this evening?  Mr. Rose 
stated he is requesting authorization to coordinate with the Pension Boards in evaluating the 
competitiveness of the plans as compared to other plans offered by jurisdictions within the region. 
 
Councilmember Hales moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. Public Art Display Project requested by Arts and Letters Commission 
  
Mr. Rose stated although the details concerning this item will be presented by the Director of Parks, 
Recreation, and Forestry, Darren Dunkle, he is recommending approval of the Arts and Letters 
Commission's Public Art Display Project. 
 
Mr. Dunkle stated the Arts and Letters Commission approached the Parks and Recreation 
Department regarding their Annual Public Art Display in Heman Park.  This request was submitted 
to the Parks Commission at their last meeting, who unanimously recommended that the project be 
brought forward to Council. 
 This is a partnership between the Commission and the students at Washington University 
where their artwork is displayed around trails within the park.  The installation; which is scheduled 
to occur in April, will be conducted by these entities, as well as the maintenance and removal in 
May. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Klein, and the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Rose stated even though the vast majority of streetlights mentioned by Mr. Sullivan are owned 
by Ameren, he would ask Mr. Dunkle and Mr. Alpaslan to provide Mr. Sullivan with an update on 
these projects to ensure that he understands the process and schedules that are currently being 
implemented by both departments.   
 

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. Bill 9449 AMENDED – AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO 

CITY OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER 
JANUARY 2, 2022, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7165 EFFECTIVE JANUARY 2, 
2022.  Bill Number 9449 was read for the second and third time.  

 
Mr. Mulligan stated Ordinance Number 7165 was passed on October 25th; however, the 
amendments to this Ordinance were not included when Bill Number 9449 was introduced.  
Therefore, he would suggest that before taking a vote that there be a motion to amend the Bill to 
include compensational and ordinance amendments made by Ordinance Number 7165, as set out 
in the Amended Bill and Council's packet.  The amendments are as follows: 

1. Addition of the Senior Planner's position; 
2. Removal of the Fire Marshal's position; 
3. Removal of the Assistant Fire Marshal's position to be replaced by the position of Deputy 

Fire Chief 
4. Removal of the Assistant to the City Manager/Director of Human Resource's position to be 

replaced by the position of Director of Human Resources. 
 
Councilmember Hales moved to approve the amendments, it was seconded by Councilmember 
McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote on the Amendment Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember 
Cusick, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

E - 2 - 4



 

Page 5 of 8 
 

Councilmember Klein moved to approve the Bill as amended, it was seconded by Councilmember 
Hales. 
 
Roll Call Vote on the Bill as Amended Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Cusick, Councilmember 
Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Klein, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

5. Bill 9450 – AN ORDINANCE IMPOSING AN ADDITIONAL ONE-FOURTH OF ONE 
PERCENT SALES TAX ON ALL RETAIL SALES MADE IN THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY 
CITY, MISSOURI WHICH ARE SUBJECT TO TAXATION PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 144.010 TO 144.525 RSMO, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
PROVIDING REVENUES FOR THE OPERATION OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY FIRE 
DEPARTMENT, AND PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION OF A PROPOSITION 
AUTHORIZING SUCH TAX TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS AT THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL 
ELECTION ON APRIL 5, 2022.  Bill Number 9450 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson asked if the background information contained in Council's packet, 
which states, "Funding would be recommended to help offset the 8.5 million Uniform Pension 
Plan's unfunded liability, and staffing of a third ambulance; when needed," meant that the revenue 
from this sales tax would also be used to purchase or staff the third ambulance?  Mr. Rose stated if 
approved, the funds would primarily go towards addressing the 8.5 million dollars unfunded liability 
within the Uniform Pension Plan.  But it also can be used to offset the cost of outfitting a third 
ambulance and the expansion of services.  The City's aging population has resulted in additional 
calls for emergency services, and staff believes they are about two to three years away from 
needing this additional service.  However, a study will be conducted and presented to Council prior 
to any recommendation to move forward with this particular item.  Councilmember Smotherson 
acknowledged that the City Manager's email had mentioned that a Comprehensive Report with call 
volumes and anticipated revenues would be presented to the Mayor and Council during a Study 
Session.  But at this point, that information won't be received until after Council has voted on Bill 
9450.  He stated while he is in total agreement with the need to address the Plan's unfunded 
liability, he believes more information is needed regarding the deficit that was also mentioned in the 
email.  Mr. Rose stated the deficit that has existed for over a decade is the 8.5 million dollars, which 
means that the additional sales tax is a critical component if Council would like to see this plan 
funded at 80 percent or greater.  However, as it relates to the ambulance and expansion of 
services, while a Comprehensive Report detailing the need for such services will be presented to 
Council at a later date that is not the main purpose of his recommendation for the additional one-
fourth of one percent sales tax.   
  Mr. Smotherson questioned whether the City was currently covering the costs related to its 
ambulance service?  Mr. Rose stated that a preliminary review of the existing services indicates 
there is roughly an annual deficit of $200,000.  But his understanding is that the primary reason 
Council voted to reinstate EMS was based on a desire to enhance this type of service for its 
residents. 
 Mr. Smotherson stated based on the fact that such a request will not be made soon, and it will 
be necessary to obtain additional information before reaching a conclusion about this matter, he 
would ask that any language related to the ambulance be removed from Bill 9450. 
 
Councilmember McMahon stated he thinks the language on the ballot does not earmark these 
funds for any specific purpose other than operation of the Fire Department.  So, even if the 
referendum passes Council will not be required to fund an ambulance or the expansion of any 
services.  This is simply the first step to authorize that this tax is put in place so that funds will be 
available.  And if that is successful, any recommendations for the use of those funds will be brought 
back to Council for a decision on the merits. 
 

E - 2 - 5



 

Page 6 of 8 
 

Mr. Rose acknowledged that Councilmember McMahon's summation was absolutely correct.   
 
Councilmember Clay stated while he thinks Councilmember Smotherson made some interesting 
points, he is supportive of this measure based on the strength of shoring up the Pension Fund.  
There is no question that more information will be needed prior to making a definitive decision 
about the expansion of services, but at this point, he believes it is imperative to move forward with 
augmenting the funding for this plan. 
 
Mr. Rose stated the sole reason for including the third ambulance in this Bill was based on his 
intent to be totally transparent about what is being considered for the use of these funds.   
 
Councilmember Hales stated the unfunded liability is an issue that has been talked about for years, 
although no viable solutions were ever presented.  In 2007, the former State Auditor listed the 
City's Uniform Pension Plan as being funded at 106 percent.  But by 2012, that percentage had 
dropped to 80 percent.  And every indication seems to suggest that it will not be able to recover on 
its own any time soon.  So, he welcomes the opportunity to address this problem.    
 He stated, with one exception, U City is the busiest Fire Department in St. Louis County in 
terms of calls for service.  Ladue and Olivette both have one staffed ambulance in service 24/7, for 
a population of approximately 8,000 people.  U City has two ambulances for a population of four 
times that size.  Therefore, he thinks the impending need to expand services is a reasonable and 
valid conversation for Council to have; especially in light of the large residential and commercial 
developments that are set to be completed in the not-so-distant future.    
 
Citizen's Comments 
Tom Sullivan, 751 Syracuse Avenue, U City, MO 
Mr. Sullivan stated since there is a previous sales tax set aside for the Fire Department, and U 
City's taxes are already high, he thinks initiating a plan to implement another tax increase is a bad 
idea; especially in light of today's economic climate.  The Wall Street Journal reported that inflation 
hit a 40-year high in November.  The cost of gasoline has gone up 60 percent, along with the price 
of groceries, which seem to be increasing daily.   So, there is no doubt in his mind that such an 
increase would have a negative impact on low-income residents and senior citizens, especially 
since the most recent Gallop Poll indicates that almost every family is experiencing some form of 
financial hardship.    
 He stated recently, U City achieved the status of being the number one City in the County and 
the State, for income and equality among its residents, but another sales tax increase will open the 
door for inequalities to creep in.   
 Mr. Sullivan stated the big promise of Costco was that it would generate lots of tax dollars for 
the City.  But since so much of the hype has turned out not to be true, his conjecture is that 
Proposition F; which is being touted as additional support for firefighters, will simply be used to 
support a badly managed City.  Therefore, he would urge Council to postpone this proposal.   
   
For clarity, Councilmember Smotherson asked what, if anything, Council was being asked to 
approve with respect to the ambulance?  Mr. Rose stated Council is not being asked to approve 
anything regarding the third ambulance, merely to authorize this initiative so that it can be placed 
on the ballot.  
 He stated any revenue from this sales tax is governed by statutes that limit its use to fire 
operations; which includes eligible expenses like the pension plan, equipment, benefits, and 
salaries.   And based on those limitations, Council will have the final say about how these funds 
should be used.     
 
Roll Call Vote on Bill No. 9450 Was: 
Ayes:  Mr. Hales, Councilmember Cusick, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, 
Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

  
 

E - 2 - 6



 

Page 7 of 8 
 

M. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions 
Bills 

 
N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1.  Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2.  Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 

Councilmember Smotherson thanked Council for their appointments to the City's Boards 
and Commissions. 
 
Councilmember Clay reported that during a meeting of the Library Board, Director Patrick 
Wall mentioned the undercurrent he is beginning to sense within the State regarding the 
type of books in libraries that talk about culture, the accuracy of U.S. history, and how 
various communities are portrayed.  He stated as some may be aware, this trend seems to 
be symptomatic of a national undercurrent where some states have actually enacted 
legislation dictating what type of materials can be housed in their libraries.  Nevertheless, 
while there are rumblings around this type of legislation at the State level, as of yet, nothing 
has materialized.   
    Councilmember Clay stated he believes U City is a community interested in a free 
exchange of ideas and a full accounting of this country's history.  And based on that belief, 
he thinks Council would be disappointed to see anything occur that would mute those 
interests.  Therefore, if and when there is a movement afoot that threatens to impact U City's 
library system, he asked Mr. Wall if he would make Council aware of those activities since it 
can advocate at a legislative level.   
 

3.  Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4.  Other Discussions/Business 

Councilmember Cusick asked Mr. Rose if he could respond to some of the concerns 
expressed by residents concerning some of the services at Centennial Commons that have 
been suspended due to the pandemic and issues related to staffing?  Mr. Rose stated Mr. 
Dunkle is in the process of evaluating the pay structure for part-time personnel needed to 
work in these positions, and he anticipates that this will result in significant adjustments that 
will be brought before Council in February.  That said; he is also aware that the City's 
competitors will be adjusting their salaries.   
    He stated there was another comment regarding competing with the private sector, 
which is something he would not recommend since the City does not have the same ability 
to adjust salaries based on the price of commodities being sold.  So, while there is a need to 
remain competitive, he also recognizes the need to manage expectations.  Because the 
truth is that even though U City is in the top 25 percentile with respect to salaries, there are 
still challenges associated with retaining and maintaining some of its full-time positions.  
Salaries alone will not solve the City's challenges, so there are no guarantees that this 
increase will lead to a fully staffed Center.  And when you couple that with so many other 
variables impacting a person's willingness to be employed, it can be a tough row to hoe.  
    Councilmember Cusick stated while he looks forward to Mr. Dunkle's report in February, 
he would like to make sure the public is aware that staff is addressing this issue, and that it 
is not being ignored.  Mr. Rose stated the upcoming salary adjustments will likely exceed the 
minimum wage salary recently approved by the State. 
 
Councilmember Hales asked Mr. Rose if he could provide Council with an update on the 
issues associated with the City's EMS dispatchers in January?   Mr. Rose stated he would 
provide Council with a report. 

 
O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continue if needed) 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
E - 2 - 7



Page 8 of 8 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal
actions, causes of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential
or privileged communications between a public governmental body or its representatives or
attorneys.

Councilmember McMahon moved to close the Regular Session and go into a Closed Session, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Hales. 

Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Cusick, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember 
Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

R. ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Crow thanked everyone in attendance and stated he looks forward to the day when
everyone can join Council in Chambers.  He then closed the regular City Council meeting at
7:21 p.m. to go into a Closed Session.  The Closed Session reconvened in an Open Session at
8:25 p.m. and adjourned at 8:26 p.m.

LaRette Reese, 
City Clerk 

E - 2 - 8



From: David Harris
To: Council Comments Shared
Cc: Terry Crow; Steve McMahon; Jeff Hales; Stacy Clay; Bwayne Smotherson; Tim Cusick; Aleta Klein; Gregory Rose
Subject: For Council Meeting 12-13-21 - Agenda Item L.2 – Bill 9450 – Sales Tax Increase
Date: Sunday, December 12, 2021 8:36:59 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Comment:  I am confused about the need for the sales tax increase, and for how long the sales tax
increase may be needed.  Therefore, I have some questions that I hope can be answered.

Question:  The unfunded pension liability is about $8.5 million, according to the Special Study Session on
September 18, 2021, reported on Page E-2-1 of the Agenda Packet.  On that page, Mr. Rose said, “In the
short term, this additional revenue [from the quarter-cent sales tax of approximately $525,000] will be
used to pay down the unfunded liability. In the long- term, it will be used to offset the cost of a third
ambulance which is projected to go live in 2023.”

Was Mr. Rose misquoted?  Isn’t it the other way around, short-term for the ambulance and long-term
(more than 16 years) for the pension liability?  The cost for an ambulance is about $390,000.  See Page
E-2-29.  Or is it short-term for both, as emphasized on Pages E-2-1 and E-2-2, because “for the unfunded
liability [the current property] taxes generate enough to cover the amount needed on an annual basis.  It
is outlined as a short-term fix because we don’t believe this tax will be needed in long term . . . So, in the
short term, the Fire Sales Tax will be used to shore up the balance until the property taxes can cover the
entire amount.”

Question:  If the sales tax increase need is short-term, what is the term, and can the increase have a
sunset provision, that is, be made valid for only that short-term period of time?

Question:  Would a sales tax increase for a new ambulance be needed if the City was still contracting out
ambulance service?

Question:  How much is the “slight deficit” referred to on Page E-2-2: “When Council decided to bring its
ambulance service back in-house it was about the quality of service and not a numbers game. The
understanding was that there would be a slight deficit, which is why [Mr. Rose] has proposed to use the
sales tax to purchase a third ambulance because the fees being collected for service are not enough to
pay for it.”

Question:  How much of the sales tax increase is to cover the “slight deficit?”

Question:  About three years ago, the City estimated public safety costs for the Olive-170 Project would
be $9 million, or about $400,000 per year over the 23 year life of the TIF, and those costs were
unfunded.  How much of this sales tax increase is needed to cover the anticipated public safety costs for
the Olive-170 Project?

Question:  How much will the proposed increase make the sales tax in U. City, including the sales tax in
extra taxing areas such as the Loop and the Olive-170 Project?

E - 2 - 9

mailto:djharris11@sbcglobal.net
mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org
mailto:mayor@ucitymo.org
mailto:steve_mcmahon@att.net
mailto:halesforucity@gmail.com
mailto:clayucity@gmail.com
mailto:bsmotherson@gmail.com
mailto:cusickward2@gmail.com
mailto:kleinward2@gmail.com
mailto:grose@ucitymo.org


From: David Harris
To: Council Comments Shared
Cc: Terry Crow; Steve McMahon; Jeff Hales; Stacy Clay; Bwayne Smotherson; Tim Cusick; Aleta Klein; Gregory Rose
Subject: For Council Meeting 12-13-21 - Non-Agenda Item - Olive-170 Project and Larry Chapman’s November 22, 2021

Presentation - Did You Hear What I Heard?
Date: Sunday, December 12, 2021 8:38:05 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

About the November 22, 2021 Council Meeting presentation by Lawrence R. “Larry” Chapman, Jr., on
behalf of Seneca CRE, LLC and Chapman Ventures, L.L.C., regarding the Olive-170 Project, did you
hear what I heard?

 
Time references are to the minutes and seconds of the Council Meeting recording.

 
(6:55) Focused on generating sales tax companies because that is what the TIF is designed around.

(7:25) A number of traffic-oriented businesses [meaning primarily restaurants – see also St. Louis
Business Journal, November 9, 2021, “We’re still focusing on other retail users, but right now our plan is
to go forward with mostly smaller fast-food restaurants,” Chapman said. “There’s going to be lots of
visitors to Costco, and that’s the kind of thing that they will be attracted to.”]

(8:00) Have to find some larger retail sales tax users or we won’t be able to make our plan work.  We just
have to do it.  Who they are we don’t know yet.  We have to get this done or else the TIF Notes that were
offered will never get completely paid off.  That’s really what our focus is.

(9:00) Still have property on Mayflower identified as an apartment site.  What that will ultimately be we’re
not sure but that is the most likely use but if we could find another sales tax generator that would be our
first choice.

(10:55) The J Building [southwest corner of project] will be a large retailer.  We really don’t know.

 
Comment:  The uncertainty about businesses other than Costco is troubling.  The food-oriented
businesses not being in any sort of eclectic food court that might have incorporated some of the displaced
restaurants is a disappointment.  Removing instead of accommodating existing retailers and restaurants
(and residents) makes even less sense now that future retailers are so uncertain
.
 
(13:05) What we are doing is taking advantage of Costco going to bring a lot of new people into the
community.  We want to make sure those people have choices when they get here . . . We have to find
more retailers who will bring people here.

 
Comment:  Is there any empirical evidence that shoppers at Costco go to the surrounding
businesses?  That question was asked several times and never answered.  It is not addressed in any of
the written analyses of the project.

 
(13:22) We don’t know who they [other retailers] are.  We took a giant leap of faith on University City.

(14:40) Part of what we want to do is bring attention to University City so people know it’s okay to come

E - 2 - 10

mailto:djharris11@sbcglobal.net
mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org
mailto:mayor@ucitymo.org
mailto:steve_mcmahon@att.net
mailto:halesforucity@gmail.com
mailto:clayucity@gmail.com
mailto:bsmotherson@gmail.com
mailto:cusickward2@gmail.com
mailto:kleinward2@gmail.com
mailto:grose@ucitymo.org


and do business here and know it’s okay to plant roots here and grow . . . We have to get everyone of the
future tenants and/or owners of these buildings to believe that or they won’t come.

 
Comment:  Chapman probably did not mean to do so but “giant leap of faith” and “so people know U. City
is okay” sounds insulting.  Additionally, I question whether displacing long-term businesses and residents
as this project has done supports the narrative that “it’s okay to plant roots here and grow.”

 
(12:33) The plan that our predecessor developer was going down was a little bit different in terms of the
retail tenant mix.  Part of the reason we are here is that they were not financeable in the way it was set up
before and so it was a mission impossible kind of task.  So what we think we have done is put ourselves
in a position to [well] close, we financed it.  That’s the fundamental difference.

(16:26) Back to March 29.  When we financed the project to allow Costco to go forward, that’s what Bob
[Clark] and I did, we brought the money to the table to allow the Costco transaction to close.

 
Comment: “Not financeable . . . mission impossible.”  Who do you trust?  Either Jonathan Browne and
Novus with the help of PGAV and Stifel misrepresented the economics of the project and further the TIF
Commission, City staff, and City Council did not approach the economics with sufficient scrutiny and
skepticism, or the new owner is misrepresenting what went on before to make himself look better and
explain why “we financed the project . . . we brought the money.”  Or both.

 
Starting on March 30, 2021, I emailed City Manager Rose and Mayor Crow to determine if Novus had
acquired all the properties as the City’s news release and some news reports implied.  I received
incomplete and unsatisfactory responses.  At the time, there should have also been more questions and
answers about the financing of the project.  I tried to bring the financing questions to the Council’s
attention, including almost a year earlier when I submitted the following comment on May 9, 2020: “The
fact that the Developer is still unable to finance this project is extremely troubling. Developer, with the
blessing of the City, or at least of several City Council members, particularly Paulette Carr and Bwayne
Smotherson, began this project including acquiring property or option contracts more than three years
ago. The project went public more than two years ago with the enthusiastic support of every Council
member and the City Manager. The project was approved by the TIF Commission (based on erroneous
information) 21 months ago. The Redevelopment Agreement was made public and almost approved 16
months ago. Council approved the Redevelopment Agreement 11 months ago. Despite the proposed
amendment to Section 7.7(a), the recent COVID-19 pandemic had nothing to do with the difficulty of
obtaining financing. I can only surmise that professional lenders and risk managers deem the project
unfeasible or at best marginal similar to the way the alleged benefits to the City became at best
marginal. Council needs to discuss publicly and hear explicitly from the Developer, and from the City’s
paid staff and advisors, why the Developer is not able to finance this project.”

David J. Harris
8039 Gannon Avenue
University City, MO 63130

E - 2 - 11



 
Comment:  To the extent there is an attitude about the proposed sales tax increase that much of it might
be paid by non-residents and therefore residents should not worry too much about it, I want to remind
Council that we hope, plan, and anticipate that we residents shop in U. City and therefore we residents
will also be paying the increased tax.

David J. Harris
8039 Gannon Avenue
University City, MO 63130

E - 2 - 12



From: Ellen Bern
To: LaRette Reese
Subject: Please read at upcoming council meeting
Date: Thursday, December 9, 2021 8:33:45 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, 
especially from unknown senders.

Please read during public comments at the Monday, Dec. 13 City Council meeting. 
************************************************************************************************* 
Dear City Council,
I ask that this administration take the steps needed to provide a robust recreation program for all members of our 
community.  This includes returning to full hours at Centennial Commons, providing a variety of programs and classes, 
and preparing for summer camp and related activities, all with Covid safe protocols.  The obstacle in hiring enough 
staff and appropriately trained and skilled staff lies with our very low salary schedule.  This needs to be changed 
immediately, just as other businesses and governments have been doing for months.  

The starting salary at Cent Commons is now $10.40/hour.   A prospective employee could walk a couple of blocks east 
or west, and start at Schnucks or Walgreens for $13/hour.  They can drive to Walmart and make $15/hour.  Fast food 
restaurants pay more than we do.  Many local restaurants, such as Salt & Smoke, start their lowest paid employees, the 
dishwashers, at $15/hour.  None of you would make the choice to make significantly less money for similar work, so 
why do you expect others to do so?   

This community needs and deserves a complete recreation program.  I expect this administration to make the necessary 
changes to hire an adequate number of staff at competitive wages so we can attract the best employees for our 
community.  I look forward to seeing improvements very soon.
Respectfully,
Ellen Bern
7001 Washington Ave.

E - 2 - 13

mailto:ellendebbiebern@gmail.com
mailto:lreese@ucitymo.org


From: Diane Davenport
To: Council Comments Shared
Subject: comment for Dec. 13, 2021meeting
Date: Monday, December 13, 2021 7:50:10 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or
clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Tp:  City Council Mebers, Mayor and City Manager

From:  Citizen Diane Davenport
           784 Yale 63130

I am reading these comments because Ellen Bern asked me to do this.  I totally am in agreement with all that she is
saying. Thank you.

I ask that this administration take the steps needed to provide a robust recreation program for all members of our
community.  This includes returning to full hours at Centennial Commons, providing a variety of programs and
classes, and preparing for summer camp and related activities., all with Covid safe protocols. The obstacle in hiring
enough staff and appropriately trained and skilled staff lies with our very low salary schedule. This needs to be 
changed immediately, just as other businesses and governments have chosen doing for months.

The starting salary at Centennial Commons is now $10.40 an hour.  A prospective employee could walk a couple of
blocks east or west and start at Schnucks or Walgreens for $13/hour. They can drive to Walmart and make
$15/hour.Fast food restaurants pay more than we do. Many local restaurants, such as Salt and Smoke, start their
lowest paid employees, the dishwashers, at $15/hour.  None of you would make the choice to make significantly less
money for similar work,so why do you expect others to do so?

The community needs and deserves a complete recreation program. I expect the administration to make the
necessary changes to hire an adequate number of staff at competitive wages so we can attract the best employees for
our community. I look forward to seeing improvement very soon.

Respectfully,
Ellen Bern
7001 Washington Ave.

E - 2 - 14

mailto:dianedavenport046@gmail.com
mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 1 of 2 

 

At the Special Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, December 20, 2021, 
via Zoom, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

A. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember Aleta Klein 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
Councilmember Tim Cusick 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., and 
Assistant City Manager, Brooke Smith 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Hearing no amendments, Councilmember Hales moved to approve the Agenda as presented.  It
was seconded by Councilmember Klein, and the motion carried unanimously.

C. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings:
ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via
email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such
comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and
made accessible to the public online following the meeting.
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your
comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will not be
recorded in the official record.

Mayor Crow thanked everyone who submitted written comments ahead of the meeting.  Comments were 
provided to members of Council prior to the meeting and will be part of the official record. 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
1. Midwest Association of Farmers Markets Reimbursement Request of Funds

2. U City in Bloom Funding Request

Mr. Rosed the first item under the Consent Agenda is a request for funds for the Midwest Association of 
Farmers Markets.  The requested funds are from FY21.  The funds were not carried forward to the current 
fiscal year, therefor we are required to present this item to the Mayor and Council for your consideration.  We 
have received the reimbursement expenses that qualify, but not for the entire amount.  The recommendation 
is that you approve the full carry forward amount of $23,978.79 that will be provided to Farmers Markets as 
we receive receipts reflecting the need to reimburse.   

The second item being proposed is an application form U City in Bloom.  The application was presented to the 
EDRST Board members last week and none objected to advancing it forward for your consideration.  The 
total amount for the projects included in the application is $50,573.00; and I would recommend this application 
be approved. 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

Monday, December 20, 2021 
6:00 p.m. 

E - 3 - 1

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Councilmember Cusick moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Klein. 
 
Q. Councilmember Clay asked why the funding was being carried over for the Farmers Market? 
A. Mr. Rose state he did not know the reason, but typically funding allocations for a project are usually 
used that same year.   For some reason that did not occur this year and since the person that was 
managing the project is no longer here; I would prefer not to speculate.   This action will enable the 
recipient to use the funds from last fiscal year if approved by the Mayor and Council. 
 
Q.  Councilmember Clay ask if the reason that Council was being asked to approve the U City in Bloom 
application was because there was not a quorum at the EDRST meeting? 
A.  Mr. Rosed stated that both projects had been concerned and previously approved by the EDRST 
Board.  Although the EDRST Board approved the U City in Bloom project in past, they would like to see 
those projects before they advance in the future.  Staff had an opportunity to meet with several members 
of the Board and they did not express any concerns.  Because they have previously approved the 
application in the past, Council may act on the item today. 
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Cusick’s motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Crow stated no Closed session was needed and welcomed a motion to adjourn. 
 
Councilmember Hales move to adjourn the regular session, it was seconded by Councilmember Clay and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
E. ADJOURNMENT   

Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their participation and wished everyone safe, happy holiday 
and adjourned  the meeting at 6:07 p.m. 

 
 

LaRette Reese, 
City Clerk 

E - 3 - 2



I - 1 - 1





J - 1 - 1 



 

City of University City 2022 Legislative Platform 
 

 
 This 2020 Legislative Platform reflects Council’s legislative positions and priorities on current 
or anticipated legislative action at both State and Federal levels.  Guided by this legislative 
platform, staff will take action to influence legislative efforts based on the best interests of the 
City of University City.  Staff will update Council throughout the legislative session while 
seeking specific feedback on issues of major importance to the City. 
 
 
 

2022 State Legislative Platform 
 

I.  REVENUE AND FINANCE 
 

A. The City will oppose legislation that results in the reduction of revenues collected by 
the City and support legislation that enhances revenue collections. 
 
• Oppose legislation that reduces shared revenues, State Gas Tax, licensing or 

franchise fees, or any other source of current revenue for the City. 
 

B. The City will protect its ability to collect and use property, and sales taxes in order to 
properly manage the operations of the City and to manage growth. 
 
 

II. GOVERNANCE 
 

A. The City will oppose legislation that reduces the City’s local authority and support 
legislation that strengthens or increases local control. 
 

• Oppose legislation that creates unfunded mandates and burdensome 
regulations. 

• Oppose legislation that imposes personal liability on Council members for 
actions taken as part of their official duty; and oppose legislation that 
increases City liability or requires the City to take on additional indemnity. 

• Oppose legislation that consolidates governments, and/or services without 
a vote of those residents impacted or a vote that is diluted.   

 
 

J - 1 - 2 



III. QUALITY SERVICES 
 

A. The City will support legislation that enhances or incentivizes economic development 
within the City and oppose legislation that weakens economic development tools. 

• Support legislation that provides alternative financing tools in order to bring 
economic investments to the City. 

• Support legislation that leverages tax laws in order to bring economic 
investments to the City. 
 

B. The City will support legislation that enhances public safety and protection from 
criminal activity, and oppose any legislation that needlessly reduces public safety or 
compromises the City’s ability to provide public safety and to protect property 
utilizing its own local authority. 

 
C. The City will support efforts to increase the ability to provide additional quality 

parks, recreation and library services and oppose efforts to limit the ability to fund 
community services. 

 
• Support legislation that allows additional options to participate in cost sharing 

and to finance municipal recreational infrastructure. 
• Support all aspects of Community Development Block Grants (CDBG). 

 
D. The City will support legislation that advances responsive and high quality health and 

human service practices and delivery to people living in and around University City, 
and oppose legislation that negatively impacts these services. 

 
• Support legislation that brings additional services and cost effective resources 

to our senior, veteran, and disabled population. 
• Support legislation that increases health care access to the City’s residents. 

 
IV. INFRASTRUCTURE 
 

A.  The City will support legislation that advances the planning, design, 
maintenance, and completion of transportation infrastructure and oppose 
legislation that will hinder completion of transportation infrastructure. 

 
• Support legislation that creates additional funding options or revenue sources 

for transportation infrastructure including private-public partnerships and new 
revenue streams. 

J - 1 - 3 



• Support legislation that reduces or repeals unnecessary or redundant 
regulatory requirements. 
 

B. The City will support legislation that enhances the City’s ability to provide or 
oversee safe and affordable utility services while protecting the health, safety, and 
public welfare of the people within the City, and oppose any legislation that 
needlessly reduces the safety and affordability of utilities or compromises the 
City’s oversight authority. 

 
V. 2020 FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM 

 
A. The City will seek federal funding for transportation infrastructure, and storm 

water management projects. 
 

B. The City will advocate for continued federal support of the transportation 
infrastructure grant programs. 

 
C. The City will advocate with the Federal Environmental Protection Agency on 

issues negatively impacting the environment. 
 

D. The City will advocate for Federal funding of COPS, and SAFER Grants. 
 

VI. STAFF REQUSTED LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITY 
 

Activity Requesting Department 
Support legislation that improves health, wellness, 
literacy and information access. City Manager’s Office 

Support legislation that enhances the efficiency and 
effectiveness of law enforcement, while protecting 
taxpayers and maintaining local authority. 
 

• Prioritize resources to combat Violent Crime 
• Federal Sentencing Reform and Reducing 

Unnecessary Incarceration 
 

Police 

Actively pursue funding for storm water management 
projects. 

City Manager’s Office/Public 
Works  

Support legislation that promotes workforce housing and 
provides additional resources for homeowner housing 
improvement programs.    

         City Manager’s Office 
 

  
 

J - 1 - 4 



J - 2 - 1



CROWN BEDS INC
6468 US HWY 63

WEST PLAINS MO 65775
417 -257 -7 144 417 -255-2628-FAX

PROPOSAL
THIS IS A PROPOSAL FROM CROWN BEDS INC , SELLER,
FOR TOM BRUSHWOOD AT LINIV BUYER.
SELLER AGREES TO FURNISH TO BUYER A DUMP BED WITH THE
FOLLOWING SPECIFICATIONS :

(1) 10' "GRAVEL STAR" DUMP BED
B OX BEAM LINDERSTRUCTURE
CROSSMEMBERS ON 12'' CENTERS
GUSSETS ON EVERY CROSSMEMBER
3/16'' STEEL FLOOR
45 DEGREE GUSSETS FLOOR TO SIDES
SIDES ARE 24'' HIGH MADE OF 10 GAUGE STEEL

WITH HORIZONTAL BRACING
33'' TALL TAILGATE OF 1O GAUGE STEEL,

REINFORCED AND DOUBLE ACTING
CAB PROTECTOR
NO ASPHALT APRON
REAR HINGE
MANUAL OPERATED TAILGATE
TAIL, TURN, BRAKE, AND S'IROBE LIGHTS IN

REAR CORNER POSTS
BACK -UP ALARM
TARP RAIL, (4) SHOVEL HOLDERS, AND STEPS
MUDFLAPS FRONT AND REAR
SAFTY BODY PROP
PAINTED: CUSTOMER,CHOICE OF COLOR
PRICE...... ........$10,400.00

PRICE INCLUDES INSTALLTION OF BODY ON EXISTING HOIST.
PICK-UP AND DELIVERY TO IINIVERSITY CITY INCLUDED
NO PTO, PUMP, CONTROLS, OR HOIST

, OPTIONS: 
,

DONOVAN SR2OOO PULL TYPE TARP SYSTEM WITH ENCLOSED
ING AND SPRING RETURN.. ...............$1,450.00

BUYER
DATE DATE

SELLER
DBCEMBER 13. 2021

PRrCE QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS

J - 2 - 2



J - 3 - 1



From: Sinan Alpaslan
To: Gregory Rose
Subject: Grant application for Kempland Bridge replacement
Date: Thursday, December 9, 2021 3:59:08 PM

Mr. Rose – this is in regards to an application to East West Gateway for a surface transportation
program project.  The application term is open and they are due on February 10.
 
After the last year’s application and its consequent approval for Pershing Ave. Resurfacing, we only
had short sections of Etzel Ave. and Kingsland Ave. remaining for a repaving project.  However, an
upcoming bridge infrastructure need is in competition with that as follows:
 
Kempland Bridge is now classified as functionally deficient (no need to reduce use on it or additional
precautions at this time) and its sufficiency rating is 67.8%.  This is a tall steel girder structure with a
longer span, which, when old and deficient, is very expensive to maintain.  Its estimated cost for
replacement is $450K per 2019 dollars.  If we go for a grant, 80% of such funding will be borne by
the Federal-aid program in the Federal fiscal years 2023 through 2026.
 
I would recommend the bridge project as it is at a competitively priced level at this point before
further deterioration and the agency doesn’t distinguish between bridge and repaving projects as
they used to do.  If we can get approved for the bridge replacement this time around, then we can
put the repaving jobs back in the next time since they are shorter sections and even a price
escalation would not have a large impact for those jobs.  All the above-listed options for a grant
application are located in University City Ward 3.
 
Please let me know if you require any additional information in this matter.
 
Respectfully,
 
 

 
Sinan Alpaslan, P.E.
Director of Public Works
City of University City
6801 Delmar Boulevard
University City, MO 63130
P: 314.505.8572 | www.ucitymo.org
 
The information transmitted (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy
Act, 18 U.S.C. 2510-2521, is intended only for the person(s) or entity/entities to which it is addressed and
may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other
use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the
intended recipient(s) is prohibited, If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete the

J - 3 - 2

mailto:salpaslan@ucitymo.org
mailto:grose@ucitymo.org
file:////c/www.ucitymo.org


J - 4 - 1 



11816 Lackland Road, Suite 150 | St. Louis, Missouri 63146 
(314) 997-7440 | Fax: (314) 997-2067 | geotechnology.com

Via email: bsmith@ucitymo.org 

November 24, 2021 

Ms. Brooke Smith, JD, MP 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, Missouri 63130 

Re: Proposal for Geotechnical Exploration 
Annex + Trinity Building 
University City, Missouri 
Geotechnology Proposal No. P040071.01 

Dear Ms. Smith: 

Geotechnology is pleased to submit this proposal to perform a geotechnical exploration for the 
referenced project. We have prepared this proposal based on our review of the October 27, 
2021 emailed request for proposal (RFP) from Ms. Amanda Truemper of Trivers Associates, 
and requested geotechnical scope items from KPFF Consulting Engineers. 

1.0 PROJECT INFORMATION 
The project consists of the design and construction of modifications to the existing University 
City Annex and Trinity buildings to provide renovations and permanent space for the police 
department.  Structural modifications to the Annex building will include seismic retrofit, including 
potentially enlarging footings, installing micropile elements, and/or reinforcing foundation walls. 
Rooftop HVAC units are also planned for the Annex building.  A one-story structure with a 
retaining wall is planned on the southeast side of the Annex building.  Structural loads were not 
available for this proposal. We have assumed wall and column loads of 8 kips per lineal feet and 
500 kips, respectively.  We understand new partitions walls and general remodeling is planned 
for the Trinity building.  New pavements are planned as part of this project.  

The Annex building is located north of the multi-story City Hall building and connector building. 
It is a two-story building with a basement and partial sub-basement tunnel.   

2.0 REQUESTED EXPLORATION  
The requested scope of exploration services includes conventional geotechnical borings, an 
alternate for shear wave velocity measurements for seismic site class, exploratory test pits, and 
exposing reinforcing steel in existing foundation walls, concrete beams, and roof.  Geotechnical 
laboratory testing, analysis, and reporting are also included in the scope of services.   

J - 4 - 2 



Geotechnical Exploration 
Annex + Trinity Building | University City, Missouri 
November 24, 2021 | Geotechnology Proposal No. P040071.01 

 

 

© 2021 Geotechnology, LLC  2 

Geotechnology can subcontract an excavating company to perform test pits, including patching 
pavement and concrete slab.  We can also subcontract a roofing company to perform repairs to 
the roof, as these services are not provided in-house.  

3.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES  
The purpose of our services is to explore the subsurface conditions and provide geotechnical 
recommendations, and to explore reinforcing steel and footing sizes for the design and 
construction of the project. Geotechnology proposes the following scope of services for the 
geotechnical exploration. 

3.1 Soil Borings 
 Four exterior soil borings will be drilled near the locations identified in the RFP.  Borings 

will be drilled to an approximate depth of 40 feet or terminated at auger refusal, 
whichever is shallower.  A maximum of 160 lineal feet of auger drilling is included.  Soil 
samples will be collected at 2.5-foot centers in the upper 10 feet and 5-foot centers 
thereafter.  Soil samples will be collected using standard penetration test (SPT) and 
Shelby tube sampling methods.  Borings will be located in the field by Geotechnology 
and referencing site features.  

 In addition to the exterior soil borings, two interior borings will be drilled using hand 
auger equipment.  The hand auger borings will be drilled to a depth of 10 feet or 
shallower refusal.  Representative grab samples will be collected during drilling. The 
concrete slab will be cored prior to drilling and patched using sack mix concrete upon 
completion.  We vacuum concrete coring water and sweep up the area upon completion.  
Mopping and any supplemental clean-up is not included. 

 Upon completion of the drilling activities, the borings will be backfilled with cuttings.  In 
the existing pavement areas, the surface will be cold patched.  Drill rig access to boring 
locations in unpaved areas could leave wheel marks in the grass or soil.  Our scope 
does not include restoration of wheel ruts or other disturbance caused by the drill rig. 

3.2 Test pits  
 As requested, test pits will be excavated at two exterior locations and one interior 

location. Geotechnology will contract with an excavating contractor, McFry Excavating, 
who will demolish asphalt pavement and the concrete slab, excavate and backfill pits, 
and patch the surface.   

 Exterior test pits will be excavated using a backhoe or excavator.  We propose to 
excavate the interior test pit using vacuum excavation techniques, accessed through the 
basement window near the northwest building corner.   

 Test pits will be backfilled with spoils, and the surface patched by our subcontractor, 
McFry Excavating.  

J - 4 - 3 



Geotechnical Exploration 
Annex + Trinity Building | University City, Missouri 
November 24, 2021 | Geotechnology Proposal No. P040071.01 

 

 

© 2021 Geotechnology, LLC  3 

3.3 Reinforced Concrete Evaluation 
 Selective concrete cover removal is requested at a total of nine locations.  Three 

locations are requested for the foundation walls near each of the test pit locations.  Five 
locations are requested on the bottom side of the roof and roof level beams, including a 
drilled hole through the roof.  One location is requested for concrete cover removal on 
the roof.  Exploration at locations on the roof is offered as an optional service because 
patching of the roof membrane is required.  Geotechnology can subcontract with a 
roofing contractor, Kirberg Companies, to provide patching work.  The cost for a roofing 
contractor is provided.   

 Scanning of the structural components using GPR (ground penetrating radar) equipment 
will be performed at each location prior to removal of concrete cover.  Concrete cover 
removal will be performed using a chipping hammer.  Clean-up will include sweeping 
concrete debris.  Upon completion of the removal activities, the concrete will be patched.   

3.4 Utilities 
 Public utilities will be notified via the Missouri One-Call system (i.e., DIGRITE).  

Geotechnology will provide subsurface utility surveying services to assist in locating 
underground private utilities in the vicinity of proposed boring and test pit locations. 
Interpreted utilities will be documented on field sketches and designated on site using spray 
paint and pin flags. Limitations and exclusions that apply to our private utility services are 
attached.  

3.5 Engineering and Laboratory Testing  
 An engineer or geologist from Geotechnology will accompany the field crew and provide 

direction during the exploration, prepare logs of the material encountered, and transport 
samples to our laboratory for testing.   

 Laboratory tests will be performed on selected soil samples to assess engineering and 
index properties.  Laboratory tests are expected to include natural moisture content, 
Atterberg limits, dry unit weights, triaxial compression, and one-dimensional 
consolidation tests.  

 Geotechnology will summarize the results of the subsurface exploration in a report.  The 
report will include the following: 

- A description of the subsurface conditions at the boring locations 
- Considerations for site excavation and placement of fill, including an evaluation of 

the suitability for reuse of the on-site soils 
- Shallow foundation (i.e., footing) recommendations including anticipated 

settlement due to increased structural loading 
- Lateral earth pressure recommendations 
- Floor slab recommendations, including the effects of expansive soil, if encountered 
- Pavement subgrade and section thickness considerations  
- Discussion of seismic site class and liquefaction potential 

Seismic soil profile coefficients will be obtained using the general procedure outlined in the 2018 
International Building Code; site specific response analysis is not planned. 

J - 4 - 4 



Geotechnical Exploration 
Annex + Trinity Building | University City, Missouri 
November 24, 2021 | Geotechnology Proposal No. P040071.01 

 

 

© 2021 Geotechnology, LLC  4 

Our scope of services does not include any environmental assessment, investigation, or study 
for the presence or absence of wetlands or hazardous or toxic materials in the soil, bedrock, 
surface water, groundwater, or air, on or below or around the site.  

A copy of "Important Information about This Geotechnical Engineering Proposal" that is 
published by the Geoprofessional Business Association (GBA) is enclosed for your review. 

3.6 Optional Seismic Shear Wave Survey 
If a seismic site class C or better is not available based on boring data, Geotechnology can 
perform seismic shear wave velocity measurements as an optional service using Multichannel 
Analysis of Surface Waves (MASW) surveying. MASW is a surface geophysical method for 
calculating a shear wave velocity (vs) profile. For this project we will calculate a shear wave 
velocity profile to a depth of approximately 100 feet. This profile will then be used to evaluate 
seismic site class. Authorization of the optional shear wave survey should be indicated in the 
Optional Services Section at the end of the proposal. 

4.0 SCHEDULE AND FEE 
Coordination of boring locations and utility notification as required by law will take two days to 
complete.  Private utility scanning services will take an additional day.  Drilling will take two days, 
weather permitting, and laboratory testing will be completed approximately one week after 
completion of drilling field work.  Test pits are expected to take three to four days, which would be 
concurrent with scanning and concrete cover removal work.   

Our report will be submitted within two to three weeks following completion of the fieldwork.  Our 
findings and recommendations can be provided throughout the course of the project as test results 
and analyses are completed.  Our fee is presented in Table 1.   

J - 4 - 5 



Geotechnical Exploration 
Annex + Trinity Building | University City, Missouri 
November 24, 2021 | Geotechnology Proposal No. P040071.01 

 

 

© 2021 Geotechnology, LLC  5 

Table 1. Summary of estimated fees. 

Service Fee 
Geotechnical Exploration. Including private utility 

scanning, 160 lineal feet of drilling and sampling, 20 lineal 
feet of interior hand auger borings, logging, laboratory 
testing, engineering analysis, and preparing a report.  

$17,300.00, lump sum 

Test Pit Exploration. Including subcontracting McFry 
Excavating for equipment and operator, logging, floor slab 

demo, structure scan and concrete cover removal in exterior 
test pits, and asphalt pavement and concrete slab patch. 

$18,900.00, estimate*  

Reinforced Concrete Evaluation. Selective concrete cover 
removal for exposed concrete members, including scanning, 
concrete removal, concrete patching, and roof penetrations, 

if patching is authorized. 

$6,500.00, lump sum 

Roofing Penetration Patching. Patching work performed 
by Kirberg Companies. $1,320.00** 

Seismic Shear Wave Velocity Survey. $3,200.00, lump sum 
Subtotal (T&M estimate) $47,220.00 

* Including $12,000.00 T&M estimate from McFry Excavating plus 10% markup.  
** Based on $1,200.00 T&M estimate from Kirberg Companies plus 10% markup.  
 

This proposal and fee estimate have been prepared using Geotechnology’s standard fee 
schedule. Geotechnology reserves the right to revise this proposal and fee estimate, at any 
time, if any flow down and/or contract provisions are required by the Client or the Owner to 
conform with any local, state, or federal wage act requirements, including, but not limited to, the 
Davis-Bacon Act, as Amended, the McNamara-O’Hara Service Contract Act, etc., the required 
use of union labor, or for any required safety, security, vehicle, drug and alcohol testing, or for 
any third party payment fees, or for other requirements not specified in the Client’s request for 
proposal or not defined in the scope of services. 

5.0 ACCEPTANCE 
Our services will be performed in accordance with the attached Terms for Geotechnology’s 
Services (Terms).  If this proposal, including the contractual terms, is acceptable, please sign in 
the space provided on the following Terms and return one executed copy of the Terms and this 
proposal to our office as your authorization for us to proceed. Please indicate which services are 
authorized in the space provided at the end of this proposal.   

J - 4 - 6 



Geotechnical Exploration 
Annex + Trinity Building | University City, Missouri 
November 24, 2021 | Geotechnology Proposal No. P040071.01 

 

 

© 2021 Geotechnology, LLC  6 

*  *  *  *  *  * 

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal for the referenced project and look 
forward to hearing from you soon. If you have any questions or comments concerning this 
proposal, or if we may be of any other service to you, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Very truly yours, 
 
GEOTECHNOLOGY, LLC 
 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Roth, P.E. Frank Callanan, P.E., D.GE 
Senior Project Manager  Vice President, Professional Services 
 
AWR/FC:awr/jlf  
 
Enclosures: Limitations and Exclusions to Geotechnology’s Utility Locating Services 
 GBA’s Important Information about This Geotechnical Engineering Proposal 
 Terms for Geotechnology’s Services 
 
 
 
Authorization for Services 
The following services are authorized as described herein:  

Service Authorized 
Geotechnical Exploration. YES   /   NO 

Test Pit Exploration. YES   /   NO 

Reinforced Concrete Evaluation. YES   /   NO 

Roofing Penetrations and Patch. YES   /   NO 

MASW Seismic Shear Wave Velocity Survey.* YES   /   NO 
*Shear wave velocity survey services can be authorized after completion of the field work.   

__________________________________ __________ 
Signature     Date  
 

J - 4 - 7 



Geotechnical Exploration 
Annex + Trinity Building | University City, Missouri 
November 24, 2021 | Geotechnology Proposal No. P040071.01 

 
 

 

© 2021 Geotechnology, LLC   
 

LIMITATIONS AND EXCLUSIONS TO GEOTECHNOLOGY’S UTILITY 
LOCATING SERVICES 

 
The following limitations and exclusions apply to Geotechnology’s utility locating services:   

 Geotechnology will perform the utility locating services in accordance with generally 
accepted engineering and geophysical principals and standard of care.   

 The possibility exists that abandoned, forgotten, non-tonable utilities or utilities without a 
tracer wire, utilities buried excessively deep beyond detection limits of standard 
geophysical survey methods, or undocumented utilities, could be missed using standard 
utility locating services described above.  Non-tonable utilities sometimes include fiber 
optic cables (without tracer wires), plastic pipe, or clay pipe.  No geophysical method will 
eliminate the uncertainty as to the presence of underground utilities.  Such certainty is 
only attained through vacuum excavation at the specific location of interest. 

 The geophysical methods are non-intrusive, indirect, methods based on readings that 
are potentially affected by a variety of natural or man-made conditions.  For instance, 
surrounding metallic objects may interfere with the EM31 and conductive soils such as 
clay can reduce the effective penetration of the GPR and, therefore, limit our ability to 
use these instruments for locating underground utilities.  The potential for detecting the 
presence or absence of subsurface features is based on the quality of the recorded data 
as limited by site conditions, and on the interpretation of the data received.  Hence, there 
will always be the potential of not observing a subsurface object or interpreting the 
presence of a subsurface object where one does not exist. 

Some of the more effective utility locating tools, such as the RD-4000 radio frequency utility 
locator and MAC51B magnetometer/pipeline locator, often work best when a transmitter is used 
to directly or indirectly (through induction) initiate a signal through the utility at a known location. 
Therefore, lack of background utility information at a site could limit our ability to detect some of 
the utilities. 

 
 

J - 4 - 8 



Geotechnical Engineering Proposal

Participate in Development of the  
Subsurface Exploration Plan
Geotechnical engineering begins with the creation of an 
effective subsurface exploration plan. This proposal starts 
the process by presenting an initial plan. While that plan 
may consider the unique physical attri butes of the site 
and the improvements you have in mind, it probably 
does not consider your unique goals, objectives, and risk 
management preferences. Subsurface exploration plans that 
are finalized without considering such factors presuppose 
that clients’ needs are unimportant, or that all clients have 
the same needs. Avoid the problems that can stem from 
such assumptions by finalizing the plan and other scope 
elements directly with the geotechnical engineer you feel is 
best qualified for the project, along with the other project 
professionals whose plans are affected by the geotechnical 
engineer’s findings and recommendations. If you have been 
told that this step is unnecessary; that client preferences do 
not influence the scope of geotechnical engineering service 
or that someone else can articulate your needs as well as 
you, you have been told wrong. No one else can discuss your 
geotechnical options better than an experienced geotechnical 
engineer, and no one else can provide the input you can. 
Thus, while you certainly are at liberty to accept a proposed 
scope “as is,” recognize that it could be a unilateral scope 
developed without direct client/engineer discussion; that 
authorizing a unilateral scope will force the geotechnical 
engineer to accept all assumptions it contains; that 
assumptions create risk. Manage your risk. Get involved.

Expect the Unexpected
The nature of geotechnical engineering is such that planning 
needs to anticipate the unexpected. During the design phase 
of a project, more or deeper borings may be required, 
additional tests may become necessary, or someone 
associated with your organization may request a service that 
was not included in the final scope. During the construction 
phase, additional services may be needed to respond quickly 
to unanticipated conditions. In the past, geotechnical 
engineers commonly did whatever was required to oblige 
their clients’ representatives and safeguard their clients’ 
interests, taking it on faith that their clients wanted them to 
do so. But some, evidently, did not, and refused to pay for 
legitimate extras on the ground that the engineer proceeded 
without proper authorization, or failed to submit notice in a 
timely manner, or failed to provide proper documentation. 
What are your preferences? Who is permitted to author ize 
additional geotechnical services on your project? What type of 
documentation do you require? To whom should it be sent? 
When? How? By addressing these and similar issues sooner 
rather than later, you and your geotechnical engineer will be 
prepared for the unexpected, to help prevent molehills from 
growing into mountains.

Have Realistic Expectations;  
Apply Appropriate Preventives
The recommendations included in a geotechnical 
engineering report are not final, because they are based 
on opinions that can be verified only during construction. 
For that reason, most geotechnical engineering proposals 
offer the construction observation services that permit the 
geotechnical engineer of record to confirm that subsurface 
conditions are what they were expected to be, or to modify 
recommendations when actual conditions were not 
anticipated. An offer to provide construction observation 

Important Information about This

Subsurface problems are a principal cause of construction delays, cost overruns, claims, and disputes.  

While you cannot eliminate all such risks, you can manage them. The following information is provided to help.

J - 4 - 9 



is an offer to better manage your risk. Clients who do not 
take advantage of such an offer; clients who retain a second 
firm to observe construction, can create a high-risk “Catch-
22” situation for themselves. The geotechnical engineer 
of record cannot assume responsibility or liability for a 
report’s recommendations when another firm performs the 
services needed to evaluate the recommendations’ adequacy. 
The second firm is also likely to disavow liability for the 
recommendations, because of the substantial and possibly 
uninsurable risk of assuming responsibility for services it 
did not perform. Recognize, too, that no firm other than the 
geotechnical engineer of record can possibly have as intimate 
an understanding of your project’s geotechnical issues. As 
such, reliance on a second firm to perform construction 
observation can elevate risk still more, because its personnel 
may not have the wherewithal to recognize subtle, but 
sometimes critically important unanticipated conditions,  
or to respond to them in a manner consistent with your 
goals, objectives, and risk management preferences.

Realize That Geoenvironmental Issues Have 
Not Been Covered
The equipment, techniques, and personnel used to perform  
a geoenvironmental study differ significantly from those 
used to perform a geo technical study. Geoenvironmental 
services are not being offered in this proposal. The 
report that results will not relate any geoenvironmental 
findings, conclusions, or recommendations. Unanticipated 
environmental problems have led to numerous 
project failures. If you have not yet obtained your own 
geoenvironmental information, ask your geotechnical 
consultant for risk management guidance. Do not rely on  
an environmental report prepared for someone else.

Obtain Professional Assistance  
To Deal with Mold
Diverse strategies can be applied during building design, 
construction, operation, and maintenance to prevent 
significant amounts of mold from growing on indoor 
surfaces. To be effective, all such strategies should be devised 
for the express purpose of mold prevention, integrated into 
a comprehensive plan, and executed with diligent oversight 
by a professional mold prevention consultant. Because 
just a small amount of water or moisture can lead to the 
development of severe mold infestations, a number of mold 
prevention strategies focus on keeping building surfaces dry. 
While groundwater, water infiltration, and similar issues 
may be addressed as part of the geotechnical engineering 
study described in this proposal, the geotechnical engineer 
who would lead this project is not a mold prevention 
consultant; none of the services being offered have been 
designed or proposed for the purpose of mold prevention.

Have the Geotechnical Engineer Work with 
Other Design Professionals and Constructors
Other design team members’ misinterpretation of a 
geotechnical engineering report has resulted in costly 
problems. Manage that risk by having your geotechnical 
engineer confer with appropriate members of the design 
team before finalizing the scope of geotechnical service  
(as suggested above), and, again, after submitting the  
report. Also retain your geotechnical engineer to review 
pertinent elements of the design team members’ plans  
and specifications.

Reduce the risk of unanticipated conditions claims that can 
occur when constructors misinterpret or misunderstand 
the purposes of a geotechnical engineering report. Use 
appropriate language in your contract documents. Retain 
your geotechnical engineer to participate in prebid and 
preconstruction conferences, and to perform construction 
observation.

J - 4 - 10 



Read Responsibility Provisions Closely
Clients, design professionals, and constructors who do 
not recognize that geotechnical engineering is far less 
exact than other engineering disciplines can develop 
unrealistic expectations. Unrealistic expectations can 
lead to disappointments, claims, and disputes. To help 
reduce the risk of such outcomes, geotechnical engineers 
commonly include a variety of explanatory provisions in 
their proposals. Sometimes labeled “limitations,” many of 
these provisions indicate where geotechnical engineers’ 
responsibilities begin and end, to help others recognize  
their own responsibilities and risks, thus to encourage  
more effective scopes of service. Read this proposal’s 
provisions closely. Ask questions. Your geotechnical  
engineer should respond fully and frankly.

Rely on Your Geotechnical Engineer  
for Additional Assistance
Membership in the Geoprofessional Business Association 
(GBA) exposes geotechnical engineers to a wide array of risk 
management techniques that can be of genuine benefit to 
everyone involved with a construction project. Confer with a 
GBA-member geotechnical engineer for more information. 
Confirm a firm’s membership in GBA by contacting GBA 
directly or at its website.

8811 Colesville Road/Suite G106, Silver Spring, MD  20910
Telephone: 301/565-2733    Facsimile: 301/589-2017

e-mail: info@geoprofessional.org    www.geoprofessional.org

Copyright 2015 by the Geoprofessional Business Association (GBA). Duplication, reproduction, copying, or storage of this document, in whole or in part,  
by any means whatsoever, is strictly prohibited, except with GBA’s specific written permission. Excerpting, quoting, or otherwise extracting wording from this document  

is permitted only with the express written permission of GBA, and only for purposes of scholarly research or book review. Only GBA-Member Firms may use  
this document as a complement to or as an element of a geotechnical engineering proposal or similar document. Any other firm, individual, or entity that so uses this  

document without being a GBA-Member Firm could be committing negligent or intentional (fraudulent) misrepresentation.

J - 4 - 11 



 

© 2021 GEOTECHNOLOGY, LLC 1 of 5 P040071.01 

 
 

TERMS FOR GEOTECHNOLOGY’S SERVICES  
 
1 - THE AGREEMENT 
 a. This AGREEMENT is made by and between: Geotechnology, LLC, hereinafter referred to as GEOTECHNOLOGY, and City of 

University City hereinafter referred to as CLIENT.   
 b. The AGREEMENT between the parties consists of these TERMS, the attached PROPOSAL identified as Proposal No. 

P040071.01, dated November 24, 2021 and any exhibits or attachments noted in the PROPOSAL. In the event of a conflict 
between the TERMS and the PROPOSAL, the provisions of the TERMS shall govern unless the PROPOSAL specifically 
indicates that it is to govern.  Together, these elements will constitute the entire AGREEMENT superseding any and all prior 
negotiations, correspondence, or agreements either written or oral.  Any changes to this AGREEMENT must be mutually agreed 
to in writing. 

 c. This proposal is valid for 90 days from November 24, 2021. 
 d. The technical pricing information contained in this PROPOSAL submitted by GEOTECHNOLOGY is to be considered confidential 

and proprietary and shall not be released or otherwise made available to any third party without the express written consent of 
GEOTECHNOLOGY. 

 e. It is intended by the parties to this AGREEMENT that GEOTECHNOLOGY'S services in connection with the project shall not 
subject GEOTECHNOLOGY'S individual employees, officers or directors to any personal legal exposure for the risks associated 
with this project.  Therefore, and notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, CLIENT agrees that as the CLIENT'S 
sole and exclusive remedy, any claim, demand or suit shall be directed and/or asserted only against GEOTECHNOLOGY, a 
Missouri corporation, and CLIENT expressly waives CLIENT’s rights against any of GEOTECHNOLOGY'S employees, officers or 
directors. 

 
2 - STANDARD OF CARE 
 a. CLIENT recognizes that conditions may vary from those observed at locations where borings, surveys, observations, or 

explorations are made, and that site conditions may change with time.  Data, interpretations, and recommendations by 
GEOTECHNOLOGY will be based solely on information available to GEOTECHNOLOGY.  GEOTECHNOLOGY is responsible 
for those data, interpretations, and recommendations, but will not be responsible for other parties' interpretations or use of the 
information developed. 

 b. GEOTECHNOLOGY offers different levels of services to suit the desires and needs of different clients.  Although the possibility of 
error can never be eliminated, more detailed and extensive services yield more information and reduce the probability of error, but 
at increased cost.  CLIENT has reviewed the scope of services and has determined that it does not need or want a greater level 
of service than that being provided. 

 c. The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed under this AGREEMENT will be the care and 
skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the 
same locality.  GEOTECHNOLOGY makes no warranties, express or implied, under this AGREEMENT or otherwise, in 
connection with any services performed or furnished by GEOTECHNOLOGY. 

 
3 - SITE ACCESS AND SITE CONDITIONS 
 a. CLIENT will grant or obtain free access to the site for all equipment and personnel necessary for GEOTECHNOLOGY to perform 

the services set forth in this AGREEMENT.  CLIENT will notify any and all possessors of the project site that CLIENT has granted 
GEOTECHNOLOGY free access to the site.  GEOTECHNOLOGY will take reasonable precautions to reduce damage to the site, 
but it is understood by CLIENT that, in the normal course of the services, some damage may occur and the correction of such 
damage is not part of this AGREEMENT unless so specified in the PROPOSAL. 

 b. Unless indicated otherwise in the PROPOSAL, CLIENT is responsible for accurately delineating the locations of all subterranean 
structures and utilities.  GEOTECHNOLOGY will take reasonable precautions to avoid known subterranean structures, and 
CLIENT waives any claim against GEOTECHNOLOGY arising from damage done to subterranean structures and utilities not 
identified or accurately located.   

 
4 - CHANGED CONDITIONS  
 a. If, during the course of performance of this AGREEMENT, conditions or circumstances are discovered which were not 

contemplated by GEOTECHNOLOGY at the commencement of this AGREEMENT, GEOTECHNOLOGY shall notify CLIENT in 
writing of the newly discovered conditions or circumstances, and CLIENT and GEOTECHNOLOGY shall renegotiate, in good faith, 
the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT. 

 
5 - SAMPLES AND CUTTINGS 

a. GEOTECHNOLOGY will dispose of soil and rock samples ninety (90) days after submittal of the report covering those samples.  
Further storage or transfer of samples can be made at CLIENT’S expense upon CLIENT’S prior written request. 

b. Cuttings, rinse water, well development and other wastes will be left on site and are CLIENT’s responsibility to dispose unless 
specifically addressed in the PROPOSAL. 

c. CLIENT shall take custody of all monitoring wells, probe holes and borings installed by GEOTECHNOLOGY and shall take any and all 
necessary steps for the proper maintenance, repair or closure for such wells, probes, or borings at CLIENT’S expense. 

J - 4 - 12 



 

© 2021 GEOTECHNOLOGY, LLC 2 of 5 P040071.01 

6 - OBSERVATION 
 a. CLIENT recognizes that unanticipated or changed conditions may be encountered during construction and, principally for this 

reason, CLIENT shall retain GEOTECHNOLOGY to observe construction when GEOTECHNOLOGY has provided engineering 
services.  CLIENT understands that construction observation is conducted to reduce – not eliminate – the risk of problems arising 
during construction and that provision of the service does not create a warranty or guarantee of any type.  In all cases, contractors 
shall retain responsibility for the quality and completeness of their work and for adhering to the plans, specifications, and 
recommendations on which their work is based.  Should GEOTECHNOLOGY for any reason not provide construction observation 
during the implementation of GEOTECHNOLOGY’s plans, specifications, and recommendations, or should CLIENT restrict 
GEOTECHNOLOGY’s assignment of observation personnel, CLIENT shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, waive any claim 
against GEOTECHNOLOGY, and indemnify, defend, and hold GEOTECHNOLOGY and its affiliated companies harmless from 
any claim or liability for injury or loss arising from field problems allegedly caused by findings, conclusions, recommendations, 
plans, or specifications developed by GEOTECHNOLOGY.  

b. If GEOTECHNOLOGY is retained by CLIENT to provide a site representative for the purpose of monitoring specific portions of 
construction work or other field activities as set forth in the PROPOSAL, then this paragraph applies.  For the specified 
assignment, GEOTECHNOLOGY will report observations and professional opinions to CLIENT.  No action of 
GEOTECHNOLOGY’s site representative can be construed as altering any AGREEMENT between CLIENT and others.  
GEOTECHNOLOGY will report to CLIENT observed conditions related to services for which GEOTECHNOLOGY has been 
retained to perform which, in GEOTECHNOLOGY’s professional opinion, do not conform with plans and specifications.  
GEOTECHNOLOGY has no right to reject or stop work of any agent of the CLIENT.  Such rights are reserved solely for 
CLIENT.  Furthermore, GEOTECHNOLOGY’s presence on site does not in any way guarantee the completion or quality of the 
work of any party retained by CLIENT to provide field or construction-related services. 

c. GEOTECHNOLOGY shall not be required to sign any document, no matter by whom requested, that would result in 
GEOTECHNOLOGY having to certify, guarantee, or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence GEOTECHNOLOGY 
cannot ascertain.  CLIENT agrees not to make resolution of any dispute with GEOTECHNOLOGY or payment of any amount 
due to GEOTECHNOLOGY in any way contingent upon GEOTECHNOLOGY signing any such document. 

d. The use of the word “certify” or “certification” by a registered professional engineer in the practice of professional engineering 
constitutes an expression of professional opinion regarding those facts or findings which are the subject of the certification, 
and does not constitute a warranty or guarantee, either express or implied.  The definition and legal effect of any and all 
certifications shall be limited as stated herein. 

e. GEOTECHNOLOGY will strive to perform its construction materials testing services under this AGREEMENT in accordance 
with generally accepted testing procedures unless other procedures are specifically referenced in the text of the Project plans 
and/or specifications.   

f. GEOTECHNOLOGY will provide materials testing for samples specified by CLIENT or at a frequency specified by CLIENT 
and/or will collect samples for materials testing or conduct materials testing when contacted by the CLIENT.  
GEOTECHNOLOGY will provide foundation testing and/or television camera inspections on drilled shafts or piles constructed 
by and at a frequency specified by CLIENT.  Engineering evaluation of the suitability of the number or types of samples is not 
provided by GEOTECHNOLOGY.   

g. Construction materials tests performed by GEOTECHNOLOGY on site are taken intermittently and indicate the general 
acceptability of materials on a statistical basis.  GEOTECHNOLOGY’S tests and observation of materials are not a guarantee 
of the quality of other parties’ work and do not relieve other parties from the responsibility to perform their work in accordance 
with applicable plans, specifications and requirements. 

 
7 - JOBSITE 

a. Unless specifically set forth in the PROPOSAL, GEOTECHNOLOGY will not be responsible for and will not have control or 
charge of specific means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction or other field activities selected by any 
other person or entity, or safety precautions and programs incident thereto.  GEOTECHNOLOGY shall be responsible only for its 
activities and that of its employees on any site.  Neither the professional activities nor the presence of GEOTECHNOLOGY or its 
employees or its subcontractors on a site shall imply that GEOTECHNOLOGY controls the operations of others, nor shall this be 
construed to be acceptance by GEOTECHNOLOGY of any responsibility for jobsite safety. 

b. Unless indicated otherwise in the PROPOSAL, GEOTECHNOLOGY'S services under this AGREEMENT are limited to 
geotechnical engineering, geophysical surveying, drilling, construction materials testing or deep foundation testing and 
GEOTECHNOLOGY shall have no responsibility to locate, identify, evaluate, treat or otherwise consider or deal with hazardous 
materials.   

c. CLIENT represents that CLIENT has made a reasonable effort to evaluate if hazardous materials are on or near the project site, 
and that CLIENT has informed GEOTECHNOLOGY of CLIENT's findings relative to the possible presence of such materials. 

d. Hazardous materials may exist at a site where there is no reason to believe they could or should be present.  
GEOTECHNOLOGY and CLIENT agree that the discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials constitutes a changed condition 
mandating a renegotiation of the scope of work or termination of services.  GEOTECHNOLOGY and CLIENT also agree that the 
discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials may make it necessary for GEOTECHNOLOGY to take immediate measures to 
protect health and safety.  CLIENT agrees to compensate GEOTECHNOLOGY for measures taken to protect health and safety 
and/or any equipment decontamination or other costs incidental to the discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials. 

e. GEOTECHNOLOGY agrees to notify CLIENT when unanticipated hazardous materials or suspected hazardous materials are 
encountered.  CLIENT agrees to make any disclosures required by law to the appropriate governing agencies.  CLIENT also 
agrees to hold GEOTECHNOLOGY and its affiliated companies harmless for any and all consequences of disclosures made by 
GEOTECHNOLOGY, which are required by governing law.  In the event the project site is not owned by CLIENT, CLIENT 
recognizes that it is CLIENT's responsibility to inform the property owner of the discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials or 
suspected hazardous materials. 

f. CLIENT will be responsible for ultimate disposal of any samples secured by GEOTECHNOLOGY, which are found to be 
contaminated. 

J - 4 - 13 



 

© 2021 GEOTECHNOLOGY, LLC 3 of 5 P040071.01 

 
8 - BILLING AND PAYMENT 

a. CLIENT will pay GEOTECHNOLOGY in accordance with the procedures indicated in the PROPOSAL and its attachments.  
Invoices will be submitted to CLIENT by GEOTECHNOLOGY, and will be due and payable upon presentation.  If CLIENT objects 
to all or any portion of any invoice, CLIENT will so notify GEOTECHNOLOGY in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of the 
invoice date, identify the cause of disagreement, and pay when due that portion of the invoice not in dispute.  The absence of 
written notification described above, shall constitute an unqualified acceptance of the invoice amount due and payable, and 
waiver by CLIENT of all claims with respect thereto. 

b. CLIENT recognizes that late payment of invoices results in extra expenses for GEOTECHNOLOGY.  GEOTECHNOLOGY retains 
the right to assess CLIENT interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month, but not to exceed the maximum rate allowed by 
law, on invoices which are not paid within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice.  In the event undisputed portions of 
GEOTECHNOLOGY’S invoices are not paid when due, GEOTECHNOLOGY reserves the right, after seven (7) days prior written 
notice, to suspend the performance of its services under this AGREEMENT until all past due amounts have been paid in full. 

c. If test results that indicate failure of a material to meet the intended specification require retesting of the material after additional 
work by parties responsible for that material, the cost of retesting will be invoiced to the CLIENT.  

d. GEOTECHNOLOGY may elect to adjust its rates under this AGREEMENT to account for changes in overhead rates and salary 
adjustments no sooner than one year from the date of this AGREEMENT, and no more often than once per year at the end of 
each subsequent year. 

 
9 - TERMINATION 
 a. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by either party seven (7) days after written notice in the event of any breach of any 

provision of this AGREEMENT or in the event of substantial failure of performance by the other party, or if CLIENT suspends the 
work for more than three (3) months.  Both parties shall have the opportunity to initiate a mutually agreeable remedy for failure of 
performance within fifteen (15) days after notice of termination.  In the event of termination, GEOTECHNOLOGY will be paid for 
services performed prior to the date of termination plus reasonable termination expenses, including, but not limited to the cost of 
cleanup, demobilization, completing analyses, records, and reports necessary to document job status at the time of termination. 

 
10 - ALLOCATION OF RISK 
 10.1  LIMITATION OF LIABILITY  
  a. GEOTECHNOLOGY and CLIENT have evaluated the risks and rewards associated with this project, including 

GEOTECHNOLOGY’S fee relative to the risks assumed, and agree to allocate certain of the risks, so, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, the total aggregate liability of GEOTECHNOLOGY to CLIENT and third parties granted reliance is limited 
to the greater of $50,000 or GEOTECHNOLOGY’S  fee, for any and all injuries, damages, claims, losses, expenses, or 
claim expenses (including attorney’s fees) arising out of GEOTECHNOLOGY’S services or this agreement regardless of 
cause or causes.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, GEOTECHNOLOGY'S negligence, errors, omissions, strict 
liability, statutory liability, negligent misrepresentation, breach of contract, breach of warranty, or other acts giving rise to 
liability based on contract, tort or statute.  If CLIENT prefers to have higher limits of liability coverage, GEOTECHNOLOGY 
agrees, upon receipt of CLIENT'S written request at the time of accepting our PROPOSAL, to increase the limits of liability 
up to a maximum of $1,000,000.00 at an additional cost of 5 percent of our total fee or $1,000.00, whichever is greater. 

  b. Neither party shall have any liability to the other party for loss of product, loss of profit, loss of use, or any other indirect, 
incidental, special or consequential damages incurred by the other party.   

 
 10.2  INDEMNIFICATION 
 a. Subject to the provisions of the Limitation of Liability described in 10.1a. above, CLIENT and GEOTECHNOLOGY each 

agree to indemnify and hold harmless the other party and the other party’s affiliated companies, officers, directors, 
partners, employees, and representatives, from and against losses, damages, and judgments, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and expenses recoverable under applicable law, but only to the extent they are legally determined to be 
caused by a negligent act, error, or omission of the indemnifying party or any of the indemnifying party’s officers, 
directors, members, partners, agents, employees, or subconsultants in the performance of services under this 
AGREEMENT.  If claims, losses, damages, and judgments are legally determined to be caused by the joint or 
concurrent negligence of CLIENT and GEOTECHNOLOGY, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to its 
negligence. 

  b. CLIENT shall indemnify and hold harmless GEOTECHNOLOGY, its affiliated companies, agents, subcontractors, 
directors, officers, and employees, from and against any and all claims, suits, liability, damages, injunctive or equitable 
relief, expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees or other loss arising from damage to subterranean structures or 
utilities which were not identified or located by CLIENT to GEOTECHNOLOGY in advance of our work or the discovery of 
unanticipated hazardous materials or suspected hazardous materials, including, but not limited to, any costs created by 
delay of the project and any costs associated with possible reduction of the property's value. 

c. For the purposes of this AGREEMENT only, and except as provided under Paragraph 10.2 (a) above regarding the 
negligent performance of GEOTECHNOLOGY, CLIENT shall reimburse GEOTECHNOLOGY for or otherwise indemnify, 
defend, and save GEOTECHNOLOGY, its affiliated companies, agents, subcontractors, directors, officers and employees 
harmless from any and all demands, suits, judgment, expenses, attorney's fees, and losses arising out of or in connection 
with bodily injury (including death) to persons or damage to property which may arise from the presence or origination of 
hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants on CLIENT'S property, irrespective of whether such materials were 
generated or introduced before or after execution of this AGREEMENT; provided, however, that nothing hereinabove set 
forth is intended to shift any responsibility for employee claims that the parties may bear under the Worker's Compensation 
laws of the state in which the work is to be performed. 

J - 4 - 14 



 

© 2021 GEOTECHNOLOGY, LLC 4 of 5 P040071.01 

d. GEOTECHNOLOGY shall under no circumstances be considered the generator of any hazardous substances, pollutants, 
or contaminants encountered or handled in the performance of the work.  Without contradiction of any assertion by 
CLIENT or third party liability as described in Paragraph 10.2 (b) above and for the purposes of this AGREEMENT only, it 
is agreed that any hazardous materials, pollutants, or contaminants generated or encountered in the performance of the 
work shall be the responsibility of CLIENT. 

 
11 -  CONTINUING AGREEMENT 
 a. The indemnity obligations and limitations of liabilities established throughout this AGREEMENT, regardless of paragraph number, 

shall survive the assignment, transfer, expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT. 
 
12 - PREVAILING WAGE AND UNION MEMBERSHIP 
 a. Unless CLIENT specifically informs GEOTECHNOLOGY in writing or it is specifically identified in our PROPOSAL and/or WORK 

AUTHORIZATION that prevailing wage regulations or union membership are required for the Project and the Scope of Services 
identifies it as covered, CLIENT will reimburse, defend, indemnify and hold harmless GEOTECHNOLOGY and its affiliated 
companies from and against any liability resulting from a subsequent determination that prevailing wage regulations or union 
membership cover the Project, including all additional costs, fines and attorneys' fees. 

 
13 - THIRD PARTY RELIANCE UPON REPORTS 

a. All Documents are prepared solely for use by CLIENT (and Owner, if applicable) and shall not be provided to any other person or 
entity without GEOTECHNOLOGY'S written consent.  CLIENT shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless GEOTECHNOLOGY, 
its affiliated companies, officers, shareholders and employees, from and against any action or proceeding brought by any person 
or entity claiming to rely upon information or opinions contained in reports or other documents provided to such person or entity, 
published, disclosed or referred to without GEOTECHNOLOGY'S written consent. 
 

14 - NON-SOLICITATION OF EMPLOYEES 
a. CLIENT recognizes that GEOTECHNOLOGY, as a part of the services covered by this AGREEMENT, may provide one or more 

of its employees to work with members of CLIENT'S project staff or specifically on a CLIENT’S project.  For purposes of this 
AGREEMENT, an employee of GEOTECHNOLOGY may be a permanent or temporary employee assigned to provide services 
to CLIENT.  CLIENT hereby agrees that CLIENT will not hire, either directly or indirectly, or provide inducement to hire an 
employee of GEOTECHNOLOGY either as an employee of CLIENT or as an employee of a subcontractor or supplier to CLIENT, 
such suppliers to include providers of contract labor, during the term of this AGREEMENT and for a period of six months after the 
termination of this AGREEMENT.  Any hiring or inducement to hire any GEOTECHNOLOGY employee during the term of this 
AGREEMENT and for a period of six months after termination of this AGREEMENT will be subject to a fee equal to 25% of the 
total fee for services generated by that employee during a nominal 12-month period.  

 
15 - DISPUTES RESOLUTION 
 a. All claims, disputes, and other matters in controversy between GEOTECHNOLOGY and CLIENT arising out of or in any way 

related to this AGREEMENT will be submitted to mediation as a condition precedent to litigation.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of the Agreement, unless prohibited by law, GEOTECHNOLOGY shall have, in addition to any other right or option set 
forth herein, the right to proceed in creating a lien upon the building or other improvements and upon the real estate on which the 
building or improvements are situated for the work and labor done and the labor and materials furnished on and to said real estate 
and to enforce its mechanic's lien pursuant to all rights and remedies available to it under law. 

 b. If a dispute at law arises from matters related to the services provided under this AGREEMENT and that dispute requires 
litigation, then: 

  (1) the claim will be brought and tried in St. Louis County, Missouri and CLIENT waives the right to move the action to any other 
county or judicial jurisdiction, and 

  (2) the prevailing party in any arbitration or litigation between GEOTECHNOLOGY and CLIENT shall be entitled to recovery of 
all reasonable costs incurred, including staff time, court costs, attorneys' fees, expert witness costs, and other claim related 
expenses.  For purposes of this paragraph, a party prevails if (i) the judgment is equal to or in excess of the Plaintiff’s last written 
demand for settlement, the Plaintiff shall also be entitled to recover its costs, expenses and reasonable attorney’s fees from 
Defendant; (ii) the judgment is equal to or less than the Defendant’s last written offer of settlement, the Defendant shall be entitled 
to recover its costs, expenses and reasonable attorney’s fees from the Plaintiff; (iii) the judgment is in between the Plaintiff’s last 
written demand for settlement and the Defendant’s last offer of settlement, then neither party shall recover any of its costs, 
expenses or attorney’s fees from the other. 

 
16 - GOVERNING LAW AND SURVIVAL 
 a. The law of the State of Missouri will govern the validity of these TERMS, their interpretation and performance. 
 b. If any of the provisions contained in this AGREEMENT are held illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the enforceability of the 

remaining provisions will not be impaired.   
 
17 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

a. This AGREEMENT shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and 
assigns.  Neither party may assign its interests herein (unless assignee assumes in writing assignor's obligations hereunder) 
without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.  No assignment shall operate 
to relieve the assignor of its obligations under the AGREEMENT. 
 

J - 4 - 15 



 

© 2021 GEOTECHNOLOGY, LLC 5 of 5 P040071.01 

18 - OTHER PROVISIONS 
 a. It is agreed that this AGREEMENT is entered into by the parties for the sole benefit of the parties to the AGREEMENT, and that 

nothing in the AGREEMENT shall be construed to create a right or benefit for any third party. 
 b. Neither party shall hold the other responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by weather and other acts of God, 

strikes, lockouts, accidents, or other events beyond the reasonable control of the other or the other's employees and agents. 
 c. The titles used in this AGREEMENT are for general reference only and are not part of the AGREEMENT. 
 
19 - FUTURE SERVICES 

a. All future services rendered by GEOTECHNOLOGY at CLIENT'S request for the project described in the PROPOSAL and/or 
WORK AUTHORIZATION shall be conducted under the terms of this AGREEMENT. 
 

20 - SIGNATURES 
 a. The parties have read the foregoing, including any attachments thereto, understand completely the terms, and willingly enter into 

this AGREEMENT that will become effective on the date signed below by CLIENT. 
 
 
 
Client 
 
 
 
      (Signature) 
 
 
By:      (Print Name) 
 
 
Position:          
 
 
Date:       

 
Geotechnology, LLC  
 
 
 
      (Signature) 
 
 
By:           Anthony W. Roth, P.E. (Print Name) 
 
 
Position:  Senior Project Manager 
 
 
Date:       November 24, 2021 

J - 4 - 16 



J - 5 - 1



J - 5 - 2



From: Sinan Alpaslan
To: Gregory Rose
Cc: Darren Dunkle
Subject: RE: two critical HVAC maintenance items
Date: Tuesday, December 21, 2021 5:24:31 PM

Mr. Rose – I am writing to follow up on the HVAC maintenance items for facilities.  The #1 item from
my original update for Centennial Commons is in the works for a resolution thanks to your
recommendation to City Council and their action to approve it at the December 13 Council meeting.
 
On the #2 item, I have the following recommendation for your consideration to bring the
Community Center HVAC system back into the normal operation in a reasonable timeframe this
winter:
 
We have obtained three bids to replace the failed 20-ton packaged unit for providing the necessary
HVAC support to the facility.  The facility is currently being conditioned by the use of area heaters in
the wet zones of the bathrooms and kitchen.  There is a bit of a worry about any power outage that
may affect the facility when it is not attended and depending on the ambient temperature the pipes
can freeze quickly due to the lack of standard insulation in the facility.  The indoor air temperature is
not ideal for nightly commission meetings and attendees keep their jackets on during these
meetings.  The Court sessions are experiencing a bit better conditions due to the crowd that is
present but later into January and February, complaints may arise.
 
The quotes for the same standard 20-ton AC and Gas unit supply from different vendors are the
following:
 

SmartHouse Heating and Cooling:  $27,265.00
Rick Rasch Heating and Cooling:  $28,880.00
Matheny Heating and Cooling:  $35,671.84

 
The lead time for the unit delivery and install across the bidding vendors is 5 to 6 weeks.  The new
unit will replace the failed unit for a 20-year estimated life to serve this facility.
 
The Committed Fund Reserve allocation by the Resolution 2021-10 used for the earlier Centennial
Commons HVAC unit repair approved by City Council allowed for $50,000 in City Facilities
Improvements.  The expenditure required for the Centennial Commons was $21,525.00  If the low
bid of the Community Center unit replacement work item is approved from the above list, there will
be enough funding from this Committed Fund Reserve item ($28,475) to be able to pay for this work
at the Community Center.  At your direction, I will prepare the item for an approval at the January 10
Council meeting similar to the one used for the other unit at the December 13 meeting, however,
would request that we advance the order of this item before that Council meeting so that we beat
the lead time as best as are able.  We will certainly continue working with the vendor SmartHouse to
ensure that the unit is delivered and installed in the most expeditious fashion as possible.  It is just
getting into late January and February without having the support of the second unit at the
Community Center can be risky, although we have so far enjoyed a milder winter this year.
 

J - 5 - 3

mailto:salpaslan@ucitymo.org
mailto:grose@ucitymo.org
mailto:ddunkle@ucitymo.org


I will be ready for any additional discussion in this matter as you so require.

Respectfully,
 
 

 
Sinan Alpaslan, P.E.
Director of Public Works
City of University City
6801 Delmar Boulevard
University City, MO 63130
P: 314.505.8572 | www.ucitymo.org
 
The information transmitted (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy
Act, 18 U.S.C. 2510-2521, is intended only for the person(s) or entity/entities to which it is addressed and
may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other
use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the
intended recipient(s) is prohibited, If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete the
material from any computer.
 

From: Gregory Rose <grose@ucitymo.org> 
Sent: Monday, November 22, 2021 5:15 PM
To: Sinan Alpaslan <salpaslan@ucitymo.org>
Cc: Darren Dunkle <ddunkle@ucitymo.org>
Subject: RE: two critical HVAC maintenance items
 
Sinan:  Okay.  Thanks.
 

 
                                   “Integrity, Customer Service, Accountable, Respect, Employees (ICARE)”
Gregory Rose
City Manager
City of University City
6801 Delmar Boulevard
University City, MO 63130
P: 314.505.8534 | www.ucitymo.org
 
The information transmitted (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy
Act, 18 U.S.C. 2510-2521, is intended only for the person(s) or entity/entities to which it is addressed and

J - 5 - 4

file:////c/www.ucitymo.org
file:////c/www.ucitymo.org


may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other
use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the
intended recipient(s) is prohibited, If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete the
material from any computer.
 

From: Sinan Alpaslan <salpaslan@ucitymo.org> 
Sent: Monday, November 22, 2021 4:57 PM
To: Gregory Rose <grose@ucitymo.org>
Cc: Darren Dunkle <ddunkle@ucitymo.org>
Subject: two critical HVAC maintenance items
 
Mr. Rose (CC’d Mr. Dunkle) – I am writing to inform you that at two University City facilities there are
season-critical HVAC items that I am working on with staff for emergency repairs.  The facilities and
the service units concerned are the following:
 

1. Centennial Commons:  1 of the 2 rooftop package HVAC units stopped working a week and a
half ago.  The unit provides heating to the gym section of the facility including the season-
critical facility sprinkler system standpipes.  We have obtained a repair proposal for
replacement of the heat exchanger system in the faulty unit for approximately $20,000.  As
soon as we complete the necessary checking into the procurement method of this quote, a
lifecycle assessment of the unit proposed to be repaired and the currently available lead times
for contracted work, I plan to submit an appropriate recommendation for your approval
consideration.

 
2. Community Center:  The main HVAC unit (one of the two units at the facility) stopped working

a week ago.  The unit provides heating to the south side of the recreation hall.  The
importance of the south side is that the municipal court is currently hosted in the entire space
(north and south) at this facility with the staff seating including the Judge being on the south
end.  When the court uses the facility, the divider wall between the two sides is removed and
the heat supplied to the north side could supplement the south side and it is acceptable for
comfort.  However, this building doesn’t have good insulation and the kitchen and the
bathrooms in the building become season-critical locations for which to provide minimum
building conditioning.  We have obtained a replacement proposal for the entire faulty unit for
approximately $28,000.  As soon as we complete the verification of the procurement method,
a rough calculation of the total heating-cooling loads in this facility given the current under-
capacity utilization due to the Coronavirus pandemic and the currently available lead times for
contracted work, I plan to submit an appropriate recommendation for your approval
consideration.

 
Please let me know if you require any additional information at this time.

Respectfully,
 
 

J - 5 - 5

mailto:salpaslan@ucitymo.org
mailto:grose@ucitymo.org
mailto:ddunkle@ucitymo.org


 
Sinan Alpaslan, P.E.
Director of Public Works
City of University City
6801 Delmar Boulevard
University City, MO 63130
P: 314.505.8572 | www.ucitymo.org
 
The information transmitted (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy
Act, 18 U.S.C. 2510-2521, is intended only for the person(s) or entity/entities to which it is addressed and
may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other
use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the
intended recipient(s) is prohibited, If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete the
material from any computer.
 

J - 5 - 6

file:////c/www.ucitymo.org


J - 5 - 7



J - 5 - 8



 

6317 Olive Street Road  ٠  Saint Louis, Missouri 63130  ٠  314-727-9000 
 

 

 

 

December 20,2021 

 

University City Recreational Complex 

975 Pennsylvania 

St. Louis, MO 63130 

 

Thank you for contacting us with this opportunity.  Matheny Heating & Cooling proposes to 
furnish and install the equipment listed below at the prices stated and are in accordance with 
the terms, prices, and conditions which are stated below and are a part of this proposal. 

 
Equipment:    

• (1) American Standard GVC240A 20 -ton package unit/Ground discharge 

• (1) Manual Fresh Air Damper  

• (1) Gas regulator 

• (1) Disconnect 

• 5-year (limited) parts and compressor 

• 10- year (limited) heat exchanger 

 
Scope of work: 

• Remove and Recycle (1) existing package unit. 

• Reclaim refrigerant from units according to EPA standards. 

• Install new disconnect box. 

• Connect gas and electric per code. 

• new supply and return insulated duct/paint sheet metal 

• Connect to existing thermostats. 

• Full start up 

• Includes St. Louis County permits, inspections, and taxes. 
Labor:  

• 3 days/2 installers 
Exclusions 

• Existing high voltage circuit to be connected by licensed electrician  
 
 
Total Investment:     $35,671.84  
 
 
 
(CONTINUED) 
 
 

J - 5 - 9



 

6317 Olive Street Road  ٠  Saint Louis, Missouri 63130  ٠  314-727-9000 
 

 
 

Terms and Conditions 
 

1.Purchaser hereby accepts the equipment and service described above and agrees to pay Matheny Heating & Cooling the price shown above.   
2. All equipment and material are guaranteed by Matheny Heating & Cooling to be as specified. All work will be completed in a workmanlike 
manner according to normally accepted practices. 
3. Materials and work in addition to that described herein will be furnished only on Purchaser’s authorization and will be paid by Purchaser as 
an extra charge. Hidden and concealed conditions may result in extra charges above and beyond the original contract price. 
5. Matheny Heating & Cooling shall not be liable for any default caused by events beyond its control, including but not limited to, fire, flood, 
strikes, accidents, or delays affecting this work or other operations in which it is involved, directly or indirectly. 
6. Purchaser shall permit Matheny Heating & Cooling reasonable access to the property on which equipment is to be installed. Title to all 
provided equipment remains with Matheny Heating & Cooling until all amounts due thereon are paid in full, whether such equipment is affixed 
to the realty or not and shall remain personal property and be deemed sever-able without injury to the freehold. On any payment default by 
Purchaser, or if in Matheny Heating & Cooling ‘s judgment, reasonably exercised, its equity appears to be imperiled, then, Matheny Heating & 
Cooling may without further notice enter the premises and remove or resell the equipment, and Purchaser shall be liable for any deficiency or 
loss sustained by Matheny Heating & Cooling in connection therewith. 
7. Once the equipment is connected to Purchaser’s property, Purchaser assumes all risk of loss or damage to such equipment and shall ensure 
same fully to protect all interests of Matheny Heating & Cooling, the cost of insurance to be paid by Purchaser. Matheny Heating & Cooling 
carries liability insurance and Worker’s Compensation Insurance. 
8. Matheny Heating & Cooling provides a one-year limited labor warranty. Equipment or system failure due to lack of proper maintenance 
service or abuse is expressly excluded. Normal maintenance check-ups and filter replacements are the responsibility of Purchaser. All other 
warranties, expressed or implied, are the responsibility of the manufacturer of the equipment, parts, or materials used in connection with the 
services. 
10. All installation and warranty work will be performed during Matheny Heating & Cooling’s normal working hours, 8:00 am to 5:00 pm, 
Monday through Friday unless noted in this contract. 
11. Purchaser is responsible for all costs and reasonable attorney fees incurred by Matheny Heating & Cooling in connection with any action or 
proceeding (including arbitration and appeals) arising out of this Agreement, including a collection of any outstanding amounts due, whether or 
not suit is filed. 
12. Every attempt will be made to complete the work on the date specified, but because Matheny Heating & Cooling may have no control over 
equipment availability, delivery, or weather, all completion dates are estimates only. 
13. All warranties or guarantees provided by Matheny Heating & Cooling shall be invalid if any other person or company works on or services 
the equipment. 
14. Purchaser shall maintain equipment as required by the manufacturer and Matheny Heating & Cooling.  This consists of a minimum of one 
visit per year.   
15. Matheny Heating & Cooling shall not be responsible for any damages incurred due to the inability of the building structure to properly 
support the installed equipment or for expense incurred in removing, replacing, or refinishing part of the building structure necessary for the 
performance of any service or installation, unless otherwise noted in this contract. 
17. Matheny Heating & Cooling shall not be liable for the identification, detection, abatement, encapsulation, storage, removal, or 
transportation of any regulated or hazardous substances which may include, but are not limited to asbestos, certain refrigerants, and 
refrigerant oils.  If any such substances are encountered during the course of work, Matheny Heating & Cooling can discontinue work until such 
substances have been removed or is eliminated. Matheny Heating & Cooling shall receive an extension equal to the time of delay to complete 
the work and reserves the right to be compensated for any loss due to a delay. 
18. Matheny Heating & Cooling shall use ordinary care in performing all work but shall not be liable for incidental or consequential damages, or 
shall it be liable for injuries to persons or damage to property except those directly caused by negligent acts of Matheny Heating & Cooling 
employees.  
19. If any statement or clause of this Terms and Conditions is held unenforceable, it shall not negate any other clause or statement contained 
herein. 
20. Except as provided herein Matheny Heating & Cooling makes no other representations or warranties, either expressed or implied, including, 
but not limited to, any implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose Matheny Heating & Cooling expressly disclaims 
all other warranties. Matheny Heating & Cooling’s maximum liability shall consist of refunding all money paid to it by Purchaser subject to 
removal and return to Matheny Heating & Cooling of all equipment provided hereunder. Under no circumstances will Matheny Heating & 
Cooling be liable to Purchaser or any other person for any damages, including, without limitation, any indirect, incidental, special, or 
consequential damages, expenses, cost, profits, lost savings, or earnings, lost or corrupted data, or other liability arising out of or related to this 
Agreement, or the services or equipment provided. 
21. This agreement shall be governed and construed solely according to the internal laws of the State of Missouri, without reference to any 
conflicts of laws. 

 

 

 

J - 5 - 10



 

6317 Olive Street Road  ٠  Saint Louis, Missouri 63130  ٠  314-727-9000 
 

 

Acceptance: 

 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a workmanlike 
manner according to standard practices and mechanical code.  Any alteration or deviation from 
the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written orders and will 
become an extra charge over and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, 
accidents, or delays beyond our control. Company to carry all necessary insurance including 
Workers Compensation insurance.  

  

The undersigned, on behalf of University City, authorizes Matheny Heating and Cooling to 
commence work as outlined in the project described in this document.  Avis Rental Car agrees 
to pay 50% upon acceptance, and the remaining balance, in full, upon completion.  

 

ACCEPTANCE by University City 

 

 

Name         Date 

 

 

Signature        Title 

 

 

 

J - 5 - 11



J - 5 - 12



J - 6 - 1



J - 6 - 2



J - 6 - 3



J - 6 - 4



J - 6 - 5



J - 6 - 6



J - 6 - 7



J - 6 - 8



J - 6 - 9



J - 6 - 10



J - 6 - 11



J - 6 - 12



J - 6 - 13



J - 6 - 14



J - 6 - 15



J - 6 - 16



J - 6 - 17



J - 6 - 18



J - 6 - 19



J - 6 - 20



J - 6 - 21



J - 6 - 22



J - 6 - 23



J - 6 - 24



J - 6 - 25



J - 6 - 26



J - 6 - 27



J - 6 - 28



J - 6 - 29



J - 6 - 30



J - 6 - 31



J - 6 - 32



J - 6 - 33



J - 6 - 34



J - 6 - 35



J - 6 - 36



J - 6 - 37



J - 6 - 38



J - 6 - 39



J - 6 - 40



J - 6 - 41



J - 6 - 42



J - 6 - 43



J - 6 - 44



J - 6 - 45



J - 6 - 46



J - 6 - 47



J - 6 - 48



J - 6 - 49



J - 6 - 50



J - 6 - 51



J - 6 - 52



J - 6 - 53



J - 6 - 54



J - 6 - 55



J - 6 - 56



J - 6 - 57



J - 6 - 58



J - 6 - 59



J - 6 - 60



J - 6 - 61



J - 6 - 62



J - 6 - 63



J - 6 - 64



J - 6 - 65



J - 6 - 66



J - 6 - 67



J - 6 - 68



J - 6 - 69



J - 6 - 70



J - 6 - 71



J - 6 - 72



J - 6 - 73



J - 6 - 74



J - 6 - 75



J - 6 - 76



J - 6 - 77



J - 6 - 78



J - 6 - 79



J - 6 - 80



J - 6 - 81



J - 6 - 82



J - 6 - 83



J - 6 - 84



J - 6 - 85



J - 6 - 86



J - 6 - 87



J - 6 - 88



RELOCATION ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 
  

This Relocation Assistance Agreement is entered into and made effective this ____ day 
of December, 2021, by and between the City of University City, Missouri ("Grantor") and 
Aleksei Mironov ("Grantee").  

RECITALS: 

A. Grantor approved a Redevelopment Agreement in connection with the Olive 
Boulevard Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation Redevelopment Plan and related 
RPA 1 Redevelopment Project, including a Relocation Policy. See Ordinance No. 7108 
(6/10/2019) and Redevelopment Agreement Section 3.2 and Exhibit I.  

B. The Relocation Policy provides assistance required under Missouri law to 
occupants or businesses relocated in connection with the RPA 1 Redevelopment Project, and 
certain additional benefits to residents and businesses affected by the RPA 1 Redevelopment 
Project.  

C.  Grantee is a displaced residential person within the meaning of said Relocation 
Policy and resided at 1177 Briscoe Place, Apt. A, University City, MO 63132, in RPA 1, on or 
before May 1, 2018. 

D. Grantee has rented a new home at 2303 Kratky Road, Apartment B, St. Louis, 
MO 63114, and is eligible for a grant of six thousand dollars ($6,000), which is the difference 
between the rental costs at the new home compared to the rental costs at the prior home, 
measured over a period of one year. 

E. Grantor is willing to make said grant to Grantee to be used for the rental costs at  
Grantee’s new home. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, Grantor 
and Grantee agree as follows: 

1. Grantee is eligible for a grant from Grantor to be used for the rental costs at 
Grantee’s new home, as stated in the above Recitals. 

2. Grantee shall provide all documents and information requested by Grantor to 
satisfy Grantor that Grantee will use the funds for the rental costs at Grantee’s new home as 
provided under the Relocation Policy. Grantor may pay the funds directly to Grantee. 

3. In the event Grantee (i) subleases said new home to another person or (ii) does not 
use the new home as Grantee’s principal residence, before the expiration of one year from the 
commencement of Grantee’s lease for the new home, Grantee shall immediately notify Grantor 
in writing and repay the funds to Grantor, provided that the repayment amount shall be reduced 
eight and thirty-three hundredths percent (8.33%) for each full month Grantee leased the new 
home, paid the rental cost, and used it as Grantee’s principal residence. Grantee shall provide all 

J - 6 - 89



documents and information requested by Grantor during the one-year period to satisfy Grantor 
that Grantee is the lessee of the new home and is using it as Grantee’s principal residence. If 
Grantee does not promptly provide such documents or information, Grantee shall repay the full 
grant amount to Grantor. 

4. If Grantee fails to comply with this Relocation Assistance Agreement, Grantor 
shall be entitled to repayment of the grant funds as provided herein and Grantee shall also pay 
any attorney's fees and costs incurred by Grantor to enforce it.   

 

  

GRANTOR      GRANTEE 

By:___________________________   By:_________________________________ 
Gregory Rose      Aleksei Mironov  
City Manager                                                              2303 Kratky Road, Apartment B 
City of University City, Missouri                               St. Louis, MO 63114  

 6801 Delmar Blvd.                                                      Telephone: ____________________ 
(314) 862-6767                                                            E-mail: _______________________ 

J - 6 - 90



 
December 28, 2021 
 
City of University City, Missouri 
C/o: Keith Cole, Director of Finance 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE:  Olive Blvd. Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation  

Redevelopment Project  
Property Address:  1190 Briscoe Place, Apt. B, University City, MO 63132 

 
INVOICE 

 
I certify that Aleksei Mironov, who currently resides at 1190 Briscoe Place, Apt. B in the 
Olive Blvd. Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation Redevelopment Project 
Area, has leased a replacement home located at 2303 Kratky Road, Apt. B, St. Louis, MO 
and is eligible to receive relocation benefits pursuant to the University City Relocation 
Policy.  The above-named party is eligible for and has elected to claim the following 
relocation benefit at this time: 
 
  
  X   ) Grant of $6,000 for the lease of a new residential unit.    
           

• The grant is equal to the difference between the rental cost at the 
replacement unit compared to the rental cost at the vacated unit, measured over a 
period of one year and not to exceed $6,000.  
 

  
Total  $6,000.00  (supporting documentation attached)  
 

  
  
Please make check payable to: Aleksei Mironov 
     2303 Kratky Road, Apt. B 
     St. Louis, MO 63146 
 
 
TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED:  $6,000.00 
 
 
________________________________ 
Project Manager 

J - 6 - 91

dmarshall
Pencil



J - 6 - 92



J - 7 - 1



J - 7 - 2



J - 7 - 3



J - 7 - 4



J - 7 - 5



J - 7 - 6



J - 7 - 7



J - 7 - 8



J - 7 - 9



J - 7 - 10



J - 7 - 11



J - 7 - 12



J - 7 - 13



J - 7 - 14



J - 7 - 15



J - 7 - 16



J - 7 - 17



J - 7 - 18



J - 7 - 19



J - 7 - 20



J - 7 - 21



J - 7 - 22



J - 7 - 23



J - 7 - 24



J - 7 - 25



J - 7 - 26



J - 7 - 27



J - 7 - 28



J - 7 - 29



J - 7 - 30



J - 7 - 31



J - 7 - 32



J - 7 - 33



J - 7 - 34



J - 7 - 35



J - 7 - 36



J - 7 - 37



J - 7 - 38



J - 7 - 39



J - 7 - 40



J - 7 - 41



J - 7 - 42



J - 7 - 43



J - 7 - 44



J - 7 - 45



J - 7 - 46



J - 7 - 47



J - 7 - 48



J - 7 - 49



J - 7 - 50



J - 7 - 51



J - 7 - 52



J - 7 - 53



J - 7 - 54



J - 7 - 55



J - 7 - 56



J - 7 - 57



J - 7 - 58



J - 7 - 59



J - 7 - 60



J - 7 - 61



J - 7 - 62



J - 7 - 63



J - 7 - 64



J - 7 - 65



J - 7 - 66



J - 7 - 67



J - 7 - 68



J - 7 - 69



J - 7 - 70



J - 7 - 71



J - 7 - 72



J - 7 - 73



J - 7 - 74



J - 7 - 75



J - 7 - 76



J - 7 - 77



J - 7 - 78



J - 7 - 79



J - 7 - 80



J - 7 - 81



J - 7 - 82



J - 7 - 83



J - 7 - 84



J - 7 - 85



J - 7 - 86



J - 7 - 87



J - 7 - 88



RELOCATION ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 
  

This Relocation Assistance Agreement is entered into and made effective this ____ day 
of December, 2021, by and between the City of University City, Missouri ("Grantor"), and Mike 
Murray and Olga Kronova ("Grantees").  

RECITALS: 

A. Grantor approved a Redevelopment Agreement in connection with the Olive 
Boulevard Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation Redevelopment Plan and related 
RPA 1 Redevelopment Project, including a Relocation Policy. See Ordinance No. 7108 
(6/10/2019) and Redevelopment Agreement Section 3.2 and Exhibit I.  

B. The Relocation Policy provides assistance required under Missouri law to 
occupants or businesses relocated in connection with the RPA 1 Redevelopment Project, and 
certain additional benefits to residents and businesses affected by the RPA 1 Redevelopment 
Project.  

C.  Grantees are displaced residential persons within the meaning of said Relocation 
Policy and resided at 1177 Briscoe Place, Apt. A, University City, MO 63132, in RPA 1, on or 
before May 1, 2018. 

D. Grantees have rented a new home at 10 Tower Hill Court, Olivette, MO 63132, 
and are eligible for a grant of six thousand dollars ($6,000), which is the difference between the 
rental costs at the new home compared to the rental costs at the prior home, measured over a 
period of one year. 

E. Grantor is willing to make said grant to Grantees to be used for the rental costs at  
Grantees’ new home. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, Grantor 
and Grantees agree as follows: 

1. Grantees are eligible for a grant from Grantor to be used for the rental costs at 
Grantees’ new home, as stated in the above Recitals. 

2. Grantees shall provide all documents and information requested by Grantor to 
satisfy Grantor that Grantees will use the funds for the rental costs at Grantees’ new home as 
provided under the Relocation Policy. Grantor may pay the funds directly Grantees. 

3. In the event Grantees (i) sublease said new home to another person or (ii) does not 
use the new home as Grantees’ principal residence, before the expiration of one year from the 
commencement of Grantees’ lease for the new home, Grantees shall immediately notify Grantor 
in writing and repay the funds to Grantor, provided that the repayment amount shall be reduced 
eight and thirty-three hundredths percent (8.33%) for each full month Grantees leased the new 
home, paid the rental cost, and used it as Grantees’ principal residence. Grantees shall provide all 

J - 7 - 89



documents and information requested by Grantor during the one-year period to satisfy Grantor 
that Grantees are the lessee of the new home and are using it as Grantees’ principal residence. If 
Grantees do not promptly provide such documents or information, Grantees shall repay the full 
grant amount to Grantor. 

4. If Grantees fail to comply with this Relocation Assistance Agreement, Grantor 
shall be entitled to repayment of the grant funds as provided herein and Grantees shall also pay 
any attorney's fees and costs incurred by Grantor to enforce it.   

 

  

GRANTOR      GRANTEES 

By:___________________________   By:_________________________________ 
Gregory Rose      Mike Murray  
City Manager                                                              10 Tower Hill Court 
City of University City, Missouri                               Olivette, MO 63130  

 6801 Delmar Blvd.                                                      Telephone: (314) 322-8487 
(314) 862-6767                                                            E-mail: mikeolya@yahoo.com   
 
 
      By:_________________________________ 
       Olga Kronova 
       10 Tower Hill Court 
       Olivette, MO 63130 
       Telephone: ____________________ 
       E-mail:_______________________ 

 
 
 

J - 7 - 90

mailto:mikeolya@yahoo.com


  

 4193 Crescent Drive, Suite C 
 St. Louis, MO  63129 

(314) 395-9905   fax: (844) 273-7147 

 
December 28, 2021 
 
City of University City, Missouri 
C/o: Keith Cole, Director of Finance 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE:  Olive Blvd. Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation  

Redevelopment Project  
Property Address:  1190 Briscoe Place, Apt. B, University City, MO 63132 

 
INVOICE 

 
I certify that Aleksei Mironov, who currently resides at 1190 Briscoe Place, Apt. B in the 
Olive Blvd. Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation Redevelopment Project 
Area, has leased a replacement home located at 2303 Kratky Road, Apt. B, St. Louis, MO 
and is eligible to receive relocation benefits pursuant to the University City Relocation 
Policy.  The above-named party is eligible for and has elected to claim the following 
relocation benefit at this time: 
 
  
  X   ) Grant of $6,000 for the lease of a new residential unit.    
           

• The grant is equal to the difference between the rental cost at the 
replacement unit compared to the rental cost at the vacated unit, measured over a 
period of one year and not to exceed $6,000.  
 

  
Total  $6,000.00  (supporting documentation attached)  
 

  
  
Please make check payable to: Aleksei Mironov 
     2303 Kratky Road, Apt. B 
     St. Louis, MO 63146 
 
 
TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED:  $6,000.00 
 
 
________________________________ 
Project Manager 

J - 7 - 91

dmarshall
Pencil



J - 7 - 92



K - 1 - 1



K - 1 - 2



K - 1 - 3



K - 1 - 4



K - 1 - 5



K - 1 - 6



K - 1 - 7



K - 1 - 8



K - 1 - 9



K - 1 - 10



K - 1 - 11



K - 1 - 12



K - 1 - 13



K - 1 - 14



K - 1 - 15



K - 1 - 16



University  City  Police  Department

                                                                        IInntteerr--ooffffiiccee  MMeemmoo  

Business 

Greenwood Restaurant 
1000 Sutter Ave., 
University City, MO 63130 

Applicant 

Tommy E. Tucker II 
7365 Delmar Blvd. 2E 
University City, MO 63130 
314-285-4499

Sir, 

I have reviewed the findings of the investigation completed by Detective Daur Nodari concerning the 
liquor license application submitted by Tommy E. Tucker II for Greenwood Restaurant located at 1000 
Sutter Ave., University City, MO 63130. Det. Nodari’s investigation was thorough revealed some cause 
for concern (see Det. Nodari’s Attached Report) but revealed no cause for a denial for a City of 
University Liquor License as applied for by Tommy E. Tucker II.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Lt. Isenberg. 

Final Approval: 

_Chief Larry Hampton
Col. Larry Hampton, Chief of Police 

Date: 12/21/21 
TO:                      Colonel Hampton, Chief of Police 

FROM:                 Lieutenant Isenberg 

SUBJECT: 1000 Sutter (Liquor License Application) 

CC: 

K - 1 - 17



K - 1 - 18



K - 2 - 1



 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
City Council 

 
MEETING DATE:   January 10, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   CUP 21-17  
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3  
 
Location: 8322 Olive Boulevard 
 
Applicant: MNG 2005, Inc. 
 
Property Owner: 8322 OLIVE HOLDINGS LLC 
 
Request: Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) The proposed use is 

for basement storage of landlord materials and files in 
a multi-tenant commercial building. 

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No  [ x ] No reference 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[  ] Approval    [ X ] Approval with Conditions   [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 
A. Application for Conditional Use Permit 
 
Existing Zoning:   GC – General Commercial    
Existing Land Use:   Commercial/Office   
Proposed Zoning:   No change – “GC” District 
Proposed Land Use: No change – Commercial 

 
Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North:  GC   General Commercial (North side of Olive Boulevard) 
East:  GC   General Commercial  
South:  GC              General Commercial  
West:  GC  General Commercial      

K - 2 - 2



C.U.P. 21-17 
Page 2  

Existing Property 
The existing property at 8322 Olive Boulevard is a 0.36-acre lot that contains a 
commercial building of approximately 10,800 square-foot building that was built in 1959. 
The site is home to five addresses: 8322, 8324, 8326, 8328 and 8330 Olive Boulevard, 
as noted in the map below. All spaces in the building have been leased, although the 
build-out continues in some of the spaces. The Conditional Use Permit request applies to 
the entire building. The property is zoned General Commercial and is surrounded by lots 
that are also zoned General Commercial.  
 
Parcel Location and Surrounding Zoning 
 

 
 
 
 
Applicant’s Request 
Currently the items being stored belong to the owner/landlord of the building. The 
petitioner owns the building but is not a tenant. Approximately 80% of the items in storage 
belong of the owner and their company businesses not located on site. The remaining 
20% are items are related to the building such as storage files and maintenance supplies.  
 
Analysis 
A Conditional Use Permit in this instance is requited per the General Commercial District 
regulations, section §400.500 – Permitted Uses, note the highlighted section: 
 

K - 2 - 3



C.U.P. 21-17 
Page 3  

The following land uses and developments are permitted in the "GC" district. In addition 
to the land uses permitted in this district, certain other uses may be conditionally allowed 
per Section 400.510. Other uses not listed, which are determined by the Zoning 
Administrator to be identical or similar to one (1) or more of the following uses, are 
permitted as well. When an unlisted use is proposed, which appears to meet the 
intent of this district but its potential impact is uncertain, then such use shall be 
considered a conditional use. 
 
The building is not sprinklered, nor are there windows in the storage rooms. These are 
two of the primary reasons why the Community Development Department staff is 
requesting the Conditional Use Permit.  
 
 
Public Works & Parks:  NA 
Fire Department:  The Fire Department will be involved in the inspections and permitting 
process for Commercial Occupancy Permits.  
Police Department:  NA 
 
 
Plan Commission Meeting  
At the Plan Commission meeting on December 15, 2021, the Applicant indicated that: 

1. While they own the building, they do not occupy any of the five (5) spaces. They 
use the basement storage at this location to store files, maintenance supplies 
and repair equipment. 

2. Nothing flammable is stored in the basement of this location.  
3. No tenants currently use the storage. Of the five (5) spaces in the building, only 

one is currently in use. The remaining four (4) are leased but undergoing 
construction to build-out the space for future use. 

4. They own other stores in University City and use the storage. 
 
The Plan Commission voted unanimously to approve the Conditional Use Permit for 8322 
Olive Boulevard. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff is of the opinion that the proposed use for basement storage of landlord materials 
and files in a multi-tenant commercial building would not be detrimental to the surrounding 
area.  
 
Staff is recommending approval of the request, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The storage areas of the building shall be subject to annual and random 
inspections by the Department of Community Development. 

 
 

K - 2 - 4



K - 2 - 5



K - 2 - 6



K -  3 - 1



        
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  January 10, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:  SPR 22-01 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT: 2 
 
Type of Review:  Site Plan 
 
Location:   7860-68 Olive Blvd. (in Westover Center, Southwest corner of 
    Olive Boulevard and Groby Road) 
 
Property Owner:  Clayton Building Partnership 
 
Applicant:   William Ritter, AIA, Etegra, Inc. (on behalf of All Nations  
    church) 
 
Requested Action: Site Plan approval for a tax-exempt religious institution to 

occupy 7860-68 Olive Blvd. in a commercial plaza 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[ X ] Approval  [   ] Approval with Conditions [   ] Denial 
 
Existing Zoning:  “GC” – General Commercial District 
Existing Land Use:  Multi-tenant commercial plaza (Westover Center) 
Proposed Zoning:   No change – “GC” District 
Proposed Land Use: No change – multi-tenant commercial plaza 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 
North: “GC” - General Commercial District Commercial and institutional uses 
East: “GC” - General Commercial District & “SR” - Single-Family Residential District              

Restaurants, office, and church 
South: “SR” - Single-Family Residential District, Open space    
West: “GC” - General Commercial District, Retail and restaurants 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[ x ] Yes [   ] No  [   ] No reference 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Application documents   

 
 

K -  3 - 2



Existing Property 
The subject building unit is a one-story multi-tenant commercial strip center (Westover 
Center) of approximately 30,325 square-feet in area built in 1990 on a 4.65-acre site. A 
large parking area with 206 parking spaces is located in front of the building. Access to the 
site is available from Olive Boulevard and Groby Road. Layout of the building on the site is 
shown in Figure 1. 
 

 
Figure 1. Westover Center and All Nations Church location. 

 
Applicant’s Request 
The Applicant, Etegra, Inc., on behalf of All Nations Church, is requesting approval of a 
Site Plan to occupy the tenant space immediately west of those currently occupied by the 
Church. A Site Plan for the existing space (7860 to 7864 Olive Boulevard) was approved 
by the City Council on August 14, 2017. The Church would like to extend their Church into 
the 7868 space. No additions or other exterior changes to the building are proposed, nor 
are any new curb-cuts or changes to the site layout of the commercial center. The 
proposed work involves interior renovations only.  
 
Process – Required City Approvals 
City Council:  Sections 400.2595 and 400.2630 of the Zoning Code requires that site plans 
for tax-exempt religious institutions, among other tax-exempt persons and organizations, to 
occupy any real property in the City to be reviewed and approved by City Council. In 
conducting its review, City Council shall consider the staff report and the application to 
determine if the proposed site plan application meets the requirements of the Zoning 
Code. No public hearing is required.  
 

K -  3 - 3



Analysis 
Places of worship are permitted uses in the “GC” – General Commercial District. Zoning 
classification and the proposed expanded use for the subject site are not at issue. City 
Council’s review of the site plan is to be as per Section 400.2630 of the Zoning Code and 
generally includes the site design and circulation, consistency with the Comprehensive 
Plan and other planning and development policies, parking and compatibility with adjacent 
properties.  
 
With no proposed changes to the site design of the existing commercial center or the 
exterior of the building, it is the opinion of staff that the proposed use would continue to be 
compatible with the surrounding areas and will not have any detrimental impact on nearby 
properties or uses. 
 
The minimum off-street parking and loading space requirements set forth in Section 
400.2140 of the Zoning Code are met. Thirty-two (32) parking spaces are required for the 
Church’s use. There are 206 existing parking spaces that will continue to be shared by 
various tenants in the commercial center, each with different operating hours. The on-site 
circulation will continue to be functional and efficient. The Church’s primary activities will 
take place on Sunday mornings when few of the other existing businesses in the center 
are open. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
The proposal complies with all applicable provisions of the Zoning Code and with the Site 
Plan Review findings of fact as set forth in the Zoning Code. Accordingly, staff 
recommends approval of the proposed Site Plan. 
 
 
 

 

K -  3 - 4



K -  3 - 5



K -  3 - 6



K -  3 - 7



K -  3 - 8



K - 4 - 1



K - 4 - 2



K - 4 - 3



K - 4 - 4



K - 4 - 5



K - 4 - 6



K - 4 - 7



K - 4 - 8



K - 4 - 9



K - 4 - 10



K - 4 - 11



K - 4 - 12



K - 4 - 13



K - 4 - 14



K - 4 - 15



K - 4 - 16



K - 4 - 17



K - 4 - 18



K - 4 - 19



K - 4 - 20


	J5 - HVAC Replacement  - HPCC.pdf
	3 - Bids.pdf
	SmartHouse proposal
	Rick Rasch proposal
	University City Rec Plex

	Blank Page

	J6 - Relocation Assist - Aleksei Mironov.pdf
	University City Relocation Grant Invoice - Aleksei Mironov.pdf
	December 28, 2021
	INVOICE
	Please make check payable to: Aleksei Mironov


	Blank Page

	J7 - Relocation Assist - Mike Murray and Olga Kronova.pdf
	University City Relocation Grant Invoice - Aleksei Mironov.pdf
	December 28, 2021
	INVOICE
	Please make check payable to: Aleksei Mironov


	Blank Page

	K2 - C.U.P. 21-17 (8322 Olive).pdf
	Staff Report_PC 21-17 8322 Olive
	C.U.P. Application

	K3 - Site Plan - All Nations Church - 7860-7868 Olive Blvd.pdf
	7860-68 Olive-SPR 22-01_Staff_Report
	Site Plan Application (SPR 22-01)
	All Nations Draft

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	2022-01-10 Council Agenda.pdf
	Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below):
	Citizen Participation and Public Hearing Comments:




